HISTORIC TOWN OF EATONVILLE, FLORIDA

REGULAR COUNCIL WORKSHOP AGENDA
Tuesday, May 06, 2025, at 6:30 PM
Town Hall - 307 E Kennedy Blvd

Please note that the HTML versions of the agenda and agenda packet
may not reflect changes or amendments made to the agenda.

I.  CALL TO ORDER
I1. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Three minutes strictly enforced)
I1l. PRESENTATIONS
1. PRESENTATION - Introduction of Rhodes and Brito Architects, Inc. (Public Works)
2. Discussion and Updates of the 1887 Juneteenth Celebrations (Councilwoman Randolph)
IV. COUNCIL DISCUSSION

3. Presentation and Discussion of the Town of Eatonville FY 2024 Annual Comprehensive
Financial Audit by Carr, Riggs, And Ingram CPA (Finance)

4. Discussion of the Contract For Engineering Services With CPH For The Water Plant And Water
Storage Tank (Administration / Public Works)

5. Presentation On A Breast Health Education Event Hosted By The MASS© Mammogram After
Sunday Service Breast Health Education & Screening Program (Randolph)

V. ADJOURNMENT

The Town of Eatonville is subject to the Public Records Law. Under Florida law, e-mail addresses are
public records. If you do not want your e-mail address released in response to a public records request,
do not send electronic mail to this entity. Instead, contact this office by phone or in writing.

**PUBLIC NOTICE**

This is a Public Meeting, and the public is invited to attend. This Agenda is subject to change. Please be
advised that one (1) or more Members of any of the Town'’s Advisory Boards/Committees may attend this
Meeting and may participate in discussions. Any person who desires to appeal any decision made at this
meeting will need a verbatim record of the proceedings and for this purpose may need to ensure that a
verbatim record of the proceedings is made which includes the testimony and evidence upon which the
appeal is to be based — per Section 286.0105 Florida Statutes. Persons with disabilities needing assistance
to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the Town of Eatonville at (407) 623-8910 "at
least 48 hours prior to the meeting, a written request by a physically handicapped person to attend the
meeting, directed to the chairperson or director of such board, commission, agency, or authority" - per
Section 286.26
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HISTORIC TOWN OF EATONVILLE,
FLORIDA

TOWN COUNCIL WORKSHOP

MAY 6, 2025, AT 6:30 PM
Cover Sheet

*NOTE** Please do not change the formatting of this document (font style, size, paragraph spacing etc.)

ITEMTITLE: PRESENTATION - Introduction of Rhodes and Brito Architects, Inc.
(Public Works)

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION:

PROCLAMATIONS, YES | Department: PUBLIC WORKS
AWARDS, AND
PRESENTATIONS

INTRODUCTIONS YES | Exhibits:

e Rhodes and Brito Architects, Inc. Presentation

CONSENT AGENDA

COUNCIL DISCUSSION

ADMINISTRATIVE

REQUEST: To introduce to town council and to present the Rhodes and Brito Architects, Inc.
credentials, provide information, and answer questions.

SUMMARY : In support of the upcoming capital improvements projects, the Public Works Department
presented to town council the need to engage Rhodes Brito and Associates Architects for the upcoming
continuing architectural services. Rhodes and Brito Architects, Inc. will provide oversight, design and
community engagement support for upcoming projects. The Piggyback Continuing Architectural
Services Agreement with Rhodes and Brito Architects, Inc. was approved by a majority vote on
Tuesday, April 15, 2025.

Rhodes and Brito Architects, Inc. will be presenting their credentials to council for information and
questions.

RECOMMENDATION: To introduce to town council and to present the Rhodes and Brito Architects,
Inc. credentials, provide information, and answer questions.

FISCAL & EFFICIENCY DATA: N/A
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_OUR FIRM PROFILE | LEADERSHIP

Rhodes+Brito Architects: Designing Better Communities

Founded in downtown Orlando in 1996 by Ruffin Rhodes,
AlA, NOMA, and Maximiano Brito, AIA, Rhodes+Brito
Architects was built on a shared vision: to create a people-
focused architecture studio that delivers exceptional
projects through dedicated service. Drawing from years of :
experien~ce n pr-OjeCT monogemen’r Ohd ead desig.n roles RuffinRhodes, AIA Maximiano Brito, AIA Byron Lastrapes, AlA Adel Shdlb(;l:;{)AlA
at Iorgg m’remohonql flrms, ’rhey.es’robllshed a proc;hc;e PRINGIPAL PRINCIPAL ’ PRINCIPAL ’ PRINCIPAL
rooted in collaboration, innovation, and community impact. —

Shortly after its inception, Byron Lastrapes, AIA, NCARB,
joined the firm, quickly rising to Principal due to his expertise
in leading complex projects. In 2017, Adel Shalaby, AlA,
LEED AP BD+C, PMP, was also named Principal, further
strengthening the firm’s leadership. By 2023, Adel became a
shared partner, joining the core leadership team that
continues to shape the firm’s future.

At Rhodes+Brito, we believe architecture is more than a
profession—it’'s a means to build stronger, more connected
communities. Our design philosophy, centered on
"Designing Better Communities,” has been our guiding
principle for nearly three decades. To us, architecture is
about fostering meaningful relationships, maintaining clear
communication, and delivering solutions-driven design. It's
about creating spaces that balance aesthetics,
functionality, and budget while enhancing the lives of those
who use them.

BI[D rhodes+H s
I < /0055 BRITO ARCHITECTS | WHO ARE WE 4.2025 NDIRACERE
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WHAT WE DO | EDUCATION
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WHAT WE DO | AVIATION
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Architecture

Overview

Rhodes+Brito Architects offers a revolutionary way to
engage with architecture through our Architecture as a
Service model. Our integrated process streamlines design,
planning, and execution, making high-quality architectural
solutions accessible and efficient. We take pride in our
ability to deliver personalized, innovative designs that

meet the diverse needs of our clients.

el es | G ETEE R )

_ RHODES+BRITO ARCHITECTS | WHO ARE WE 4.2025

nWHAT WE DO | OUR SERVICES

Interior Design

Overview

We offer premier interior design services that turn
ordinary spaces into extraordinary experiences. Our
design philosophy emphasizes creativity, elegance, and
sustainability, ensuring that every project is not only
beautiful but also environmentally conscious. We work
hand-in-hand with our clients, translating their dreams into
stunning realities. Discover the difference that thoughtful

design can make in your space.
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Master Planning

Overview

Master Planning is about envisioning the future of
communities. Our team collaborates with stakeholders to
create comprehensive plans that balance sustainability,
functionality, and aesthetic appeal. With a focus on long-
term growth, we design spaces that are adaptable and

resilient. Partner with us to bring your vision to life.

3-Picnic Pavillons & Warket Canoples

4-Amphithoator

5-Playground

6:Sand Beach

7-Beach Volleyball Courts
showsrs
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CATALINA / FRANCES JERRY PARK

Catalina/Frances Jerry Park

201 Campus View Eatonville, FL 32810

New Cnr‘nmunitv 0 %

Resilience Hub Stormwater |

This stormwater park with green infrastructure i
asin

includes Green Stormwater Infrastructure (GSI) d
features to reduce stormwater runoff and protect the
water quality and reduce flooding of Lake King.
Retention basins, rain gardens, native plants/trees and
other vegetation will be installed to improve the uptake
and drainage of stormwater. The project also includes
a new Community Resilience Hub and aerator fountain.
A new |0T sensored flood risk management system

Policing Bldg. and
Restrooms by

w/Fence

p‘wmﬂ

along with a bioengineered lining of the outfall canal

will be installed. Park features requiring replacement g ondeate
will be updated including fishing piers, pavilions and
walkways. New property will be acquired to provide Existing basketball L
additional overflow storage to meet engineering courtsrebabiliiated |
requirements in the Jacobs stormwater model.

Fm:ovuﬁnpumdgm ————

New Flood Risk
Management System

/ Lake MM‘,,*,__/ e -~ !
Bio-Engineered Living n Boardwdk and &
Shoreline will be installed g -

along the outfall canal to stop
future erosion and stabilize
the shoreline

GREEN OPEN SPACE

Compus ViewDr

BOLAR PANELS
EOSTING BUILDING
[ pROPOSED BULDING

(.T\' o 50 oh
) —

EPA Cenral Aorida Recovery and Resiliency Farinership Pro”

New Entry with Fence

aw

with solar panels

E———n-p-im-h fh

4 —— (Concrete Boardwalk

s e

g palion @

Bio Engineered Living Shoreline
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Laks King

Aerator/Fountain

Concrete Boardwalk

New vegetation and cypress trees around water’s edge
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nCATALINA/ FRANCES JERRY PARK

O Design Consultation — Sub Station / Resilient Hub

» Design Concepts for Police Substation, Resilience
Hub at Jerry Francis Park

0 Master Planning Services

: : : » Data Collection » Conceptual MP (DRAFT > Final MP
» Project Kickoff Meeting _ _p _ ( )

» Research entitlements » Public Meeting - Assets/Liabilities » Preliminary Final MP
» Introduce team members Discussion _

» |dentify stormwater areas » Public Open House
» Review the project scope » 1dayPublic Design Charrette (schedule)

» Meetings with the Town . . . » Final Master Plan
» Confirm project schedule Planner, AHJ > Confirm Project Deliverables

» Preliminary Engineering
» Conceptual studies - Draft

» Confirm project deliverables » Locate existing studies > Conceptual Building
. » Stakeholder open house - Presentation of i
» Schedule stakeholder meetings. » Boundary/Topographical P Elevations
survey Draft Concepts

> Answer Questions » Council Presentation of the Draft MP
» Research easements

» Significantarchitectural
features

» CEPTED Analysis

)| D)
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CATALINA/ FRANCES JERRY PARK

O Architectural/Engineering
Services

| 2

| 2

Schematic Design
Design Development
Construction Documents
Permitting

Bid & Award

Construction Phase Services

_ RHODES+BRITO ARCHITECTS | WHO ARE WE 4.2025
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HISTORIC TOWN OF EATONVILLE,
FLORIDA

TOWN COUNCIL WORKSHOP

MAY 6, 2025, 6:30 PM
Cover Sheet

*NOTE** Please do not change the formatting of this document (font style, size, paragraph spacing etc.)

ITEMTITLE: Discussion and Updates of the 1887 Juneteenth Celebrations
(Councilwoman Randolph)

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION:

PROCLAMATIONS, YES | Department: LEGISLATION (Councilwoman Randolph)
AWARDS, AND
PRESENTATIONS

INTRODUCTIONS Exhibits:
e N/A

CONSENT AGENDA

COUNCIL DISCUSSION | YES

ADMINISTRATIVE

REQUEST: For Town Council to hear a presentation on the updates on the celebration of the Juneteenth
Freedom Day Thursday through Saturday, June 19-21, 2025, within the Historic Town of Eatonville, the
oldest Black Incorporated municipality in the United States.

SUMMARY:: Since 2022, the Historic Town of Eatonville wishes to celebrate and observe Juneteenth
which is the oldest known celebration marking the end of slavery in the United States also known as
"Freedom Day." On January 1, 1863, The Emancipation Proclamation was issued by President Abraham
Lincoln granted freedom to all slaves, however, not until June 19, 1865, Major General Gordon Granger
arrived in Texas to inform slaves that slavery had been abolished.

It is an important occasion for The Town of Eatonville to come together to celebrate freedom and to show
the town’s unique culture & establishments with the 1887 Juneteenth celebrations. This experience will
be a family-friendly event with the support of the local community.

The MOU for the celebration of Juneteenth Freedom Day Thursday through Saturday, June 19-21, 2025,
was approved by town council on March 18, 2025.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended to the Town Council to hear updates the 1887 Juneteenth
Celebrations to be held Thursday through Saturday, June 19-21, 2025, within the Historic Town of
Eatonville.

FISCAL & EFFICIENCY DATA: N/A
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3rd Annual 1887 Juneteenth Weekend-2025

2025 1887 Juneteenth Weekend Committee
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1887 Juneteenth Theme For 2025
“Honoring Our History For A Resilient Future!”

.
.
I A0
b+ 4

~“TEENTH
JUNETEENTH WEEKEND %,

#HONORING OUR HISTORY FOR A RESILIENT FUTURE

EATONVILLE

FLORIDA eS: WY
Learninginc.\§

\ FORMOREINFO  1887JUNETEENTH.COM

“JUNE

+TEENTH

#HONORING OUR HISTORY FOR A RESILIENT FUTURE

THURS. JUNE 19TH 2025

6:30PM-8:30PM | ST. LAWRENCE AME CHURCH
JUNETEENTH - FREEDOM DAY CELEBRATION
FRI. JUNE 20TH 2025

. 11AM-4PM | HUNGERFORD FIELD
¢ YOUTH JAM

" SAT. JUNE 21ST 2025
| ‘;ﬁZPM-GPM] HUNGERFORD FIELD
. JUNETEENTH FEST

1887 Juneteenth
Weekend Lineup

18
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Juneteenth
“Freedom Day”
Celebration

-Celebrating Freedom, Resilience, and Strength-

Join us for an evening to celebrate freedom in
"The Town That Freedom Built!" Listen to an
inspirational word, live performances, and much
more! Light refreshments will be served!

Jun 19th 6:30pm-8:30pm
St. Lawrence AME Church

Freedom Day Committee
Councilwoman Wanéa Randolph(Town of
Eatonville)

Clarece Hopkins

Marquita Carter-Etienne

Juneteenth
Youth Jam

This fun filled day just for our youth!
Celebrate Freedom with a Juneteenth
inspired eSTEAMed Kids Zone, outdoor =
games, Kuumba Talent Showcase,
community art mural, music, vendors
and much more!

Jun 20th 11:00am-4:00pm
Hungerford Field

eSTEAMed Learning, Inc
Orange County Library System
Black History Project Committee
Town of Eatonville

19
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Juneteenth Fest

An elevated celebration of culture and
freedom! Enjoy a jubilant day in the
community with live entertainment, vendors,
local resources, a Juneteenth inspired
eSTEAMed Kids Zone, immersive history
hunts and much more! We are happy to
announce our Freedom Lounge VIP
package for this event!

Jun 21st 12:00pm-6:00pm
Hungerford Field

eSTEAMed Learning, Inc
Black Market Network
Town of Eatonville

All Roads Lead To Eatonville For Juneteenth
Thank You For Your Support!

1887 Juneteenth POC: 1887
Ruthi Critton

Town of Eatonville POC: J \
Brittani Gragg J

—
=
“—
\
"3

Freedom Day Committee POC:

Councilwoman Randolph

l.u.

20
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HISTORIC TOWN OF EATONVILLE,
FLORIDA

TOWN COUNCIL WORKSHOP

MAY 6, 2025, 6:30 PM
Cover Sheet

*NOTE** Please do not change the formatting of this document (font style, size, paragraph spacing etc.)

ITEMTITLE: Presentation and Discussion of the Town of Eatonville FY 2024 Annual
Comprehensive Financial Audit by Carr, Riggs, And Ingram CPA
(Finance)

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION:

PROCLAMATIONS, YES | Department: FINANCE
AWARDS, AND
PRESENTATIONS

INTRODUCTIONS Exhibits:
e Town of Eatonville Proposed Annual CFRA Report

CONSENT AGENDA

COUNCIL DISCUSSION | YES

ADMINISTRATIVE

REQUEST: Staff requests for review and discussion of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
completed by Carr, Riggs & Ingram CPA FY 2024 Financial Audit for the Town.

SUMMARY:: Attached is the completed independent auditor’s report from Carr, Riggs & Ingram for the
year ending September 30, 2024. This audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the
financial statements that collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements. The enterprise fund
budgetary comparison schedules are presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally under state statutes

RECOMMENDATION: Staff requests for review and discussion of the Town’s Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report completed by Carr, Riggs & Ingram CPA FY 2024 Financial Audit.

FISCAL & EFFICIENCY DATA: N/A
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

Town of Eatonville, Florida

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2024

CEATONVILLE, FLORIDA /




TOWN OF

EATONVILLE
ELECTED OFFICIALS
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ANGIE GARDNER
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EATONVILLE, FLORIDA WAS THE

FIRST MUNICIPALITY WITHIN THE
UNITED STATES TO BE INCORPORATEI
BY FAMILIES OF NEWLY FREED SLAV

INCORPORATED ON AUGUST 18,

Section IV. Item #3.
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Celebrating 125 Years

HISTORIC TOWN
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Town of Eatonville, Florida 1l
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® -
CARR Carr, Riggs & |
c R I RIGGS & 1031 West Morse Boulevard
INGRAM Suite 200

Winter Park, FL 32789

CARR, RIGGS & INGRAM, L.L.C. 407.644.7455

407.628.5277 (fax)
CRladv.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Council
Town of Eatonville, Florida

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Eatonville,
Florida (hereafter the Town) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2024, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town, as of September 30, 2024, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of the Town, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town’s ability to continue
as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

30
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on
the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Town’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statem ... . ~donc¢ _..... anopini’. orprov. __.,
assurance on the information because the limited pro ‘dures a not irovide v with / .[ft_ientev lence
to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

-2
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Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town’s basic financial statements. The enterprise fund budgetary comparison schedules are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the enterprise fund budgetary
comparison schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements
as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated DATE, on our
consideration of the Town of Eatonville, Florida’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Town of Eatonville, Florida’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That reportis an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Town of Eatonville, Florida’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

CARR, RIGGS & INGRAM, L.L.C.

Orlando, Florida
DATE
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As the Administration of the Town of Eatonville, Florida (the Town), we offer readers of the Town's
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town as of
and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024. Please read our discussion and analysis of the
Town’s financial activities for the year ended September 30, 2024, in conjunction with the Town’s
basic financial statements, which immediately follow the discussion.

Financial Highlights

The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Town exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $14,146,138 (net position). The
Town’s total net position decreased by $714,911 during fiscal year 2024, including a $646,289
decrease in business-type activities and a 568,622 decrease in governmental activities.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town’s basic financial
statements. The Town’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components:
(1) Government-wide financial statements, (2) Fund financial statements, and (3) Notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains required and other supplementary information in addition to
the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the Town's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the Town assets and deferred outflows of
resources, and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between the two
being reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information that demonstrates how the Town's net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash
flows in future fiscal periods (for example, uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions
that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges
(business-type activities).

The governmental activities of the Town include general government, human services, public
safety, community redevelopment, physical environment, economic development, and culture and
recreation. The business-type activities of the Town include water and sewer, solid waste and
stormwater operations.
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The government-wide financial statements include not only the Town itself (known as the primary
government), but also a legally separate Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA), for which the
Town is financially accountable. The CRA, although a legally separate entity, functions for all practical
purposes as a department of the Town and, therefore, has been included as an integral part of the
primary government.

The Town’s government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 13-14 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like other
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Town can be divided into three categories:
Governmental funds, Proprietary funds, and Fiduciary funds.

Governmental Fund. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike
the government-wide financial statements, governmental funds’ financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the Town's near-
term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the Town's near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental funds’ Balance Sheet and the governmental funds’ Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Town maintains the following two individual governmental funds: General Fund and Community
Redevelopment Agency Fund. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance
sheet, and in the governmental funds’ Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances for these funds. The Town adopts an annual appropriated budget for its enterprise funds
and its governmental funds. Budgetary comparison schedules have been provided to demonstrate
compliance with the budget. The basic governmental funds’ financial statements can be found on
pages 15-18 of this report.

Proprietary Funds. The Town maintains three enterprise funds, which are used to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
Town uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer, solid waste, and stormwater
operations. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary funds’ financial statements provide separate
information for the water and sewer, solid waste, and stormwater operations. The basic proprietary
funds’ financial statements can be found on pages 19-21 of this report.

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the Town’s own
programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds i mucn. e th- usea :propr’ : 'ry func . ine
basic fiduciary fund financial statements are for the ’olice Pe sio Trust F' 1d an/ ca. be fo 1d on

pages 22-23 of this report.
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Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes
to the financial statements can be found on pages 24-55 of this report.

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the Town's General Fund’s and
Community Redevelopment Agency Fund’s budget compliance and schedules of changes in the net
pension asset and schedules of contributions related to the Town of Eatonville Municipal Police
Officers’ Retirement Trust Fund (the Plan). Required supplementary information can be found on
pages 56-60 of this report.

Additional budgetary information is presented immediately following the required supplementary
information and can be found on pages 61-63 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Town's financial
position. In the case of the Town, assets plus deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and
deferred inflows by $14,146,138 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

The following schedule is a summary of the Statement of Net Position found on page 13 of this report.

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Assets
Current and other assets S 7,004,593 S 6,894,733 S (891,268) S (532,384) S 6,113,325 S 6,362,349
Capital assets 6,563,360 6,296,091 6,851,362 7,142,317 13,414,722 13,438,408
Total assets 13,567,953 13,190,824 5,960,094 6,609,933 19,528,047 19,800,757
Deferred outflows
of resources 51,395 203,940 - - 51,395 203,940
Liabilities
Other liabilities 178,564 256,176 1,246,140 1,167,210 1,424,704 1,423,386
Long-term liabilities 697,237 643,921 1,791,757 1,874,237 2,488,994 2,518,158
Total liabilities 875,801 900,097 3,037,897 3,041,447 3,913,698 3,941,544
Deferred inflows
of resources 1,519,606 1,202,104 - - 1,519,606 1,202,104
Net Position
Net investment in
capital assets 5,984,222 5,760,839 5,069,614 5,278,674 11,053,836 11,039,513
Restricted 1,462,590 1,050,828 - - 1,462,590 1,050,828
Unrestricted (deficit) 3,777,129 4,480,896 (2,147,417) (1,710,188) 1,629,712 2,770,708
Total net position $ 11,223,941 S 11,292,563 S 2,922,197 S 3,568,486 S 14,146,138 S 14,861,049

By far the largest portion of the Town’s net position, $11,053,836 reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those
assets. The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets
are not available for future spending. Although the Town's investment in its capital assets is reported
net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided
from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

$1,462,590 of the Town's net position represents re ~that ¢ "ot to exte o al restr!
on how they may be used.
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At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town reported a negative unrestricted net position in the
business-type activities of $2,147,417 and positive balances in all other categories of net position for
both the governmental activities and business-type activities.

Governmental Activities. Total assets and deferred outflows increased $224,584 (2%) from the
prior year, while total liabilities and deferred inflows increased $293,206 (22%) from the prior
year. Key elements of these changes are as follows:

e The net pension asset increased $568,142 and deferred outflows related to pensions
decreased $152,545, while deferred inflows related to pensions increased $317,502.
These changes are primarily due to a change in actuarial assumptions and expected to
actual experience (see detailed discussion of the pension plan on pages 56-60 of this
report).

e Capital assets increased $267,269, $418,212 of which was current year accumulated
depreciation, offset by $554,437 in capital asset additions.

e Long-term liabilities increased due to addition of capital lease of $ 131,044 and $85,109
of regular payments on notes and capital leases.

Business-type Activities. Total assets decreased $649,839 (10%) from the prior year while total
liabilities decreased $3,550 (1%) from the prior year. Key elements of these changes are as
follows:

e (Capital assets decreased $290,955, primarily due to current year additions of $136,765,
offset with accumulated depreciation increase of $427,720.
e Internal balances of amounts due to the general fund increased $339,212.
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The following schedule is a summary of the Statement of Activities on page 14 of this report.

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for Services S 310,476 S 490,858 S 1,403,171 S 1,631,077 $ 1,713,647 S 2,121,935
Operating grants and
contributions 192,425 264,320 - - 192,425 264,320
Capital grants and
contributions 250,000 - - - 250,000 -
General revenues
Property taxes 2,579,818 2,284,193 - - 2,579,818 2,284,193
Other taxes 1,642,219 1,657,234 - - 1,642,219 1,657,234
Other revenues 334,810 437,232 - - 334,810 437,232
Total revenues 5,548,015 5,133,837 1,403,171 1,631,077 6,951,186 6,764,914
Expenses
General government 2,728,572 2,219,641 - - 2,728,572 2,219,641
Public safety 2,166,509 1,718,556 - - 2,166,509 1,718,556
Physical environment 543,729 371,184 - - 543,729 371,184
Economic environment 8,176 6,541 - - 8,176 6,541
Human services 500 500 - - 500 500
Culture and recreation 96,976 90,650 - - 96,976 90,650
Interest on long-term debt 17,175 11,492 - - 17,175 11,492
Water and sewer - - 1,519,102 1,333,017 1,519,102 1,333,017
Solid waste - - 432,422 317,673 432,422 317,673
Stormwater - - 152,936 146,297 152,936 146,297
Total expenses 5,561,637 4,418,564 2,104,460 1,796,987 7,666,097 6,215,551
Increase (decrease) in net
position before transfers (13,622) 715,273 (701,289) (165,910) (714,911) 549,363
Transfers (55,000) (55,000) 55,000 55,000 - -
Change in net position (68,622) 660,273 (646,289) (110,910) (714,911) 549,363
Net position - beginning 11,292,563 10,632,290 3,568,486 3,679,396 14,861,049 14,311,686
Net position - ending $ 11,223,941 S 11,292,563 $ 2,922,197 $ 3,568,486 S 14,146,138 S 14,861,049

Governmental Activities. Governmental activities decreased net position by $68,622, compared to

an increase of $660,273 in the prior year. Key elements of changes as a result of activities are as

follows:

e General government expenses increased $508,931 (23%) primarily as a result of an increase

in salary and wages and contractual services.

e Public safety expenses increased $447,953 (26%) primarily because of hiring of new police

officers, health insurance premium increased and contractual service.

e Capital grants and contributions increased $250,000 primarily due to new grant received for

the CRA.
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The following chart shows the composition of revenues for the Town’s governmental activities.

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities
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The following chart shows the Town's expenses by category.

Expenses - Governmental Activities
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Business-type Activities. Business-type activities increased net position by $646,289, compared to a
decrease of $110,910 in the prior year.

The following chart compares expenses and program revenues for the Town’s business-type activities.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-type Activities

1,000,000
800,000
600,000
M Program Revenues
400,000 Expenses
200,000 I I

Water & Sewer Solid Waste Stormwater

Financial Analysis of the Town of Eatonville's Funds. As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting
to ensure and demonstrate compliance with the legal requirements for financially related matters.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the Town’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing
the Town’s financing requirements. In particular, the fund balance serves as a useful measure of a
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $5,021,366, a decrease of $292,211 for the year. Approximately 69% ($3,451,498)
constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the Town’s discretion. The
remainder of the fund balance is classified as non-spendable (5107,278), and restricted ($1,462,590).

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Town. At the end of the current fiscal year, the
Town reported a positive fund balance of $3,558,776 for the General Fund, a decrease of $703,973
from the prior year. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare the
unassigned fund balance to total expenditures. As of September 30, 2024, the General Fund’s
unassigned fund balance represents 62% of total General Fund expenditures.

The fund balance of the Town’s CRA Fund increased $411,762 from the prior year to $1,462,590.
Operating costs of $221,632 within the CRA fell below revenue sources of $633,394.

-10
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Proprietary Funds. The Town's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

The unrestricted net deficit of the Water and Sewer, Solid Waste and Stormwater Funds at the end of
the year amounted to $2,147,417 with an unrestricted $4,106,178 deficit in the Water and Sewer Fund
offsetting positive balances in the other funds. The Water and Sewer and Solid Waste funds decreased
net position and the Stormwater fund increased net positions by (5620,300), (564,853) and $38,864,
respectively.

The Town intends to rebuild the net position of the Water and Sewer Fund through a change to the
utility rate structure and increases in overall utility rates going into effect in fiscal year 2025. Other
factors concerning the finances of these three funds have already been addressed in the discussion of
the Town's business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights. During the year, there were $5,077,843 budgeted expenditures,
which were less than actual expenditures by $485,752 as shown below.

Variances
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/

Expenditures Original Final Amounts (Negative)
General government S 2,235569 $§ 2,235569 S 2,323,645 S (88,076)
Public safety 2,200,006 2,200,006 2,112,069 87,937
Physical environment 299,391 299,391 421,680 (122,289)
Economic environment 8,446 8,446 8,176 270
Human services 17,655 17,655 500 17,155
Culture/recreation 92,776 92,776 56,079 36,697
Capital outlay 130,000 130,000 669,606 (539,606)

Debt service:

Principal 59,500 59,500 85,109 (25,609)
Interest 34,500 34,500 17,775 16,725
Total expenditures S 5,077,843 $ 5,077,843 S 5,694,639 S (616,796)

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Long-term Debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town had $2,488,994 in total long-term
debt outstanding. Of this amount, $475,995 consists of a loan, and the related premium, through the
Florida Municipal Loan Council; $1,521,553 consists of State Revolving Fund loans; $106,835 consists
of lease liabilities; and the remainder consists of revenue bonds of $260,195.

The State Revolving Fund loans with the State of Florida Department of Environmental Protection are
for wastewater facilities improvement projects, with initial draws occurring in fiscal year 2013.
Repayments for one of the loans began in fiscal year 2017 and repayments on the second loan began
in fiscal year 2018.

Additional information on the Town’s long-term liabilities can be found in Note 2, pages 44-47 of this
report.

-11
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Capital Assets. The Town's capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
September 30, 2024 amounted to $13,414,722 (net of accumulated depreciation). Capital assets
include land, infrastructure, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, and recreational
facilities. Additional information on the Town’s capital assets can be found in Note 2 on pages 42-43
of this report.

Economic Factor. General economic conditions are increasingly positive in recent years. Although the
Town's fund balances and cash flows are well below desired levels, recent development has begun on
a major planned development project in the Town that will increase tax revenue and help add
stability to the General Fund. In addition to development by external sources, the Town has been
awarded some major infrastructure grants that will be beneficial to the Capital Improvement
Programs associated with Water and Sewer Utilities which will strengthen the utility and add stability
also.

Requests for Information. This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the
Town'’s finances for all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any
of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be
addressed to the Office of the Finance Director, Town of Eatonville, 307 Kennedy Blvd., Eatonville,
Florida, 32751.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements include the government-wide financial statements,
fund financial statements and notes to the financial statements. The government-
wide financial statements present financial information about the reporting
government as a whole. The fund financial statements present financial
information about major funds individually and non-major funds in the aggregate.
The notes to the financial statements present information essential for a fair
presentation of the financial statements not displayed on the face of the financial
statements.
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Town of Eatonville, Florida
Statement of Net Position

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
September 30, 2024 Activities Activities Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents S 2,445,334 $§ 1,111,972 $ 3,557,306
Accounts receivable, net 257,915 213,348 471,263
Leases receivable 1,159,338 - 1,159,338
Due from other governments 72,656 - 72,656
Prepaid items and other assets 110,970 - 110,970
Internal balances 2,216,588 (2,216,588) -
Net pension asset 741,792 - 741,792
Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation:
Nondepreciable 1,014,679 2,500 1,017,179
Depreciable 5,548,681 6,848,862 12,397,543
Total assets $ 13,567,953 $ 5,960,094 S 19,528,047
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows related to pensions S 51,395 S - S 51,395
Total deferred outflows of resources S 51,395 S - S 51,395
Liabilities
Accounts payable S 7,867 §$ 102,143 S 110,010
Accrued liabilities 91,859 184,186 276,045
Unearned revenues 28,314 860,309 888,623
Other liabilities 50,524 - 50,524
Customer deposits - 99,502 99,502
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 172,305 81,953 254,258
Due in more than one year 524,932 1,709,804 2,234,736
Total liabilities S 875,801 $§ 3,037,897 $ 3,913,698
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows related to leases S 1,066,547 S - $§ 1,066,547
Deferred inflows related to pensions 453,059 - 453,059
Total deferred inflows of resources S 1,519,606 S - $§ 1,519,606
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets S 5,984,222 $ 5,069,614 $ 11,053,836
Restricted for:
Economic environment 1,462,590 - 1,462,590
Unrestricted (deficit) 3,777,129 (2,147,417) 1,629,712
Total net position S 11,223,941 S 2,922,197 S 14,146,138

The notes to the financial statements al
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For the year ended September 30, 2024

Program Revenues
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Town of Eatonville, Florida
Statement of Activities

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Operating

Capital

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Primary government:
Governmental activities:

General government S 2,728,572 227,336 S 151,003 250,000 S (2,100,233) - (2,100,233)

Public safety 2,166,509 83,140 41,422 - (2,041,947) - (2,041,947)

Physical environment 543,729 - - - (543,729) - (543,729)

Economic environment 8,176 - - - (8,176) - (8,176)

Human services 500 - - - (500) - (500)

Culture/recreation 96,976 - - - (96,976) - (96,976)

Interest on long-term debt 17,175 - - - (17,175) - (17,175)

Total governmental activities 5,561,637 310,476 192,425 250,000 (4,808,736) - (4,808,736)

Business-type activities:

Water and sewer 1,519,102 843,802 - - - (675,300) (675,300)

Solid waste 432,422 367,569 - - - (64,853) (64,853)

Stormwater 152,936 191,800 - - - 38,864 38,864

Total business-type activities 2,104,460 1,403,171 - - - (701,289) (701,289)

Total primary government S 7,666,097 S 1,713,647 S 192,425 S 250,000 (4,808,736) (701,289) (5,510,025)
General revenues:

Property taxes 2,579,818 - 2,579,818

Franchise fees based on gross receipts 462,344 - 462,344

Sales taxes 449,508 - 449,508

Utility service taxes 730,367 - 730,367

Miscellaneous and other taxes 261,166 - 261,166

Unrestricted investment earnings 73,644 - 73,644

Insurance recovery 238,267 - 238,267

Transfers, net (55,000) 55,000 -

Total general revenues and transfers 4,740,114 55,000 4,795,114

Change in net position (68,622) (646,289) (714,911)

Net position, beginning of year 11,292,563 3,568,486 14,861,049

Net position, end of year > w 23,941 2,922,197 194,19490,150

The notes to the financial statements ar, anintegra’ arto is state. nt.

-14

49




September 30, 2024
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Town of Eatonville, Florida
Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds

Community
Redevelopment
General Agency

Total
Governmental
Funds

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Leases receivable
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Prepaid items

$ 973,146 $ 1,472,188
257,915 -
1,159,338 -
2,542,555 -
72,656 -

107,278 -

$ 2,445334

257,915
1,159,338
2,542,555

72,656

107,278

Total assets

S 5,112,888 S 1,472,188

$ 6,585,076

Liabilities
Liabilities
Accounts payable S 5959 S 1,908 S 7,867
Accrued liabilities 84,491 - 84,491
Unearned revenue 28,314 - 28,314
Due to other funds 318,277 7,690 325,967
Other liabilities 50,524 - 50,524
Total liabilities 487,565 9,598 497,163
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows-leases 1,066,547 - 1,066,547
Total deferred inflows of resources 1,066,547 - 1,066,547
Fund balances
Nonspendable
Prepaid items 107,278 - 107,278
Restricted for
Community Redevelopment Agency - 1,462,590 1,462,590
Unassigned 3,451,498 - 3,451,498
Total fund balances 3,558,776 1,462,590 5,021,366

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balance

S 5,112,888 S 1,472,188

$ 6,585,076

The notes to the financial statements al
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Town of Eatonville, Florida
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet —
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position

September 30, 2024

Total fund balances - governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different
because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds.

Governmental capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

Net pension asset included in total assets is not available to pay current expenditures and,
therefore, is not reported in the funds.

Governmental funds record bond insurance costs as expenditures when these costs are first
incurred. Unamortized bond insurance costs for prepayment of insurance must be included as a
prepaid item in the government-wide statements.

Long-term liabilities, including compensated absences, are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Notes payable

Unamortized premium

Lease liabilities

Compensated absences

Accrued interest on long-term debt

Deferred outflow of resources related to pension earnings are not recognized in the

governmental funds; however, they are recorded in the statement of net position under full
accrual accounting.

Deferred inflow of resources related to pension earnings are not recognized in governmental

funds; however, they are recorded in the statement of net position under full accrual accounting.

13,405,515

(6,842,155)

(460,000)
(15,995)
(106,835)
(114,407)
(7,368)

S 5,021,366

6,563,360

741,792

3,692

(704,605)

51,395

(453,059)

Net position of governmental activities

$ 11,223,941

The notes to the financial statements al aninteg il p tor. isstate/ a0+
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Town of Eatonville, Florida
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds

Section IV. Item #3.

Community Total
Redevelopment Governmental
For the year ended September 30, 2024 General Agency Funds
Revenue
Ad valorem taxes S 2,229,318 S 350,500 $ 2,579,818
Utility taxes 730,367 - 730,367
Franchise fees 462,344 - 462,344
Sales tax 449,508 - 449,508
Intergovernmental revenues 192,425 250,000 442,425
Licenses and permits 186,560 - 186,560
Charges for services 117,064 - 117,064
Fines and forfeitures 6,852 - 6,852
Interest income 45,660 27,984 73,644
Rental and other income 256,257 4,910 261,167
Total revenues 4,676,355 633,394 5,309,749
Expenditures
Current
General government 2,323,645 193,281 2,516,926
Public safety 2,112,069 - 2,112,069
Physical environment 421,680 - 421,680
Economic environment 8,176 - 8,176
Human services 500 - 500
Culture/recreation 56,079 12,476 68,555
Capital outlay 669,606 15,875 685,481
Debt service:
Principal 85,109 - 85,109
Interest and other related charges 17,775 - 17,775
Total expenditures 5,694,639 221,632 5,916,271
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (1,018,284) 411,762 (606,522)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Lease proceeds 131,044 - 131,044
Insurance recovery 238,267 - 238,267
Transfers out (55,000) - (55,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) 314,311 - 314,311
Net change in fund balances (703,973) 411,762 (292,211)
Fund balance, beginning of year 4,262,749 1,050,828 5,313,577
Fund balance, end of year S 5,500,776 ¢ 1,= 590 ¢ 5,0 ,5vu

The notes to the financial statements al
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances -

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the year ended September 30, 2024 2024

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (292,211)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of

activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and

reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capitalized capital outlay

(5554,437) exceeded depreciation ($418,212) in the current period. 267,269

Issuance of capital leases is an other financing source in the governmental funds, but
increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. (131,044)

Repayment of note principal and lease liability is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. 85,109

Insurance for governmental debt is recorded as an expenditure in the governmental
funds. However, in the government-wide statements, this insurance is recorded as a
prepaid item and amortized over the life of the policy. (615)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not provide (or do not require)
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

(Increase) in compensated absences payable (10,046)
Decrease in unamortized premium 2,664
Decrease in accrued interest on long-term debt 600 (6,782)

Pension expense is reported in the Statement of Activities, which differs from pension
expenditures as reported in governmental funds.

Increase in net pension asset 568,142
Decrease in deferred outflows related to pensions (152,545)
Decrease in deferred inflows related to pensions (405,945) 9,652
Change in net position of governmental activities S (68,622)
The notes to the financial statements al aninteg al p tof ti »state ...
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Statement of Net Position -
Proprietary Funds

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water and
September 30, 2024 Sewer Solid Waste Stormwater Total
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents S 1,111,972 S - S - S 1,111,972
Accounts receivable, net 115,765 66,389 31,194 213,348
Total current assets 1,227,737 66,389 31,194 1,325,320
Noncurrent assets
Due from other funds - 912,882 1,106,890 2,019,772
Capital assets
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land 2,500 - - 2,500
Total non-depreciable capital assets 2,500 - - 2,500
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements 11,924,980 - - 11,924,980
Equipment 276,444 - 153,387 429,831
Total depreciable assets 12,201,424 - 153,387 12,354,811
Less accumulated depreciation (5,392,989) - (112,960) (5,505,949)
Total depreciable capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation 6,808,435 - 40,427 6,848,862
Total noncurrent assets 6,810,935 912,882 1,147,317 8,871,134

Total assets

S 8,038,672 S 979,271 $ 1,178,511 $ 10,196,454

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable S 95,966 S - S 6,177 S 102,143
Accrued liabilities 35,830 127,012 21,344 184,186
Unearned revenues 860,309 - - 860,309
Current portion of notes payable 72,289 - - 72,289
Current portion of compensated absences 5,948 - 3,716 9,664
Customer deposits 99,502 - - 99,502
Total current liabilities 1,169,844 127,012 31,237 1,328,093
Noncurrent liabilities
Due to other funds 4,236,360 - - 4,236,360
Compensated absences - - 345 345
Notes payable 1,709,459 - - 1,709,459
Total noncurrent liabilities 5,945,819 - 345 5,946,164
Total liabilities 7,115,663 127,012 31,582 7,274,257
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 5,029,187 - 40,427 5,069,614
Unrestricted (deficit) (4,106,178) 852,259 1,106,502 (2,147,417)

Total net position

S 923,009 S 852,259 S 1,146,929 $ 2,922,197

The notes to the financial statements al aninteg al p tof ti »state ...

54

-19




Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position -
Proprietary Funds

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water and

For the year ended September 30, 2024 Sewer Solid Waste ~ Stormwater Total
Operating Revenues

Charges for services S 843,802 S 367,569 S 191,800 $ 1,403,171
Total operating revenues 843,802 367,569 191,800 1,403,171
Operating Expenses

Personnel services 328,260 - 118,390 446,650

Operating 794,603 432,422 33,373 1,260,398

Depreciation expense 396,239 - 1,173 397,412
Total operating expenses 1,519,102 432,422 152,936 2,104,460
Operating income (loss) (675,300) (64,853) 38,864 (701,289)
Operating income (loss) before contributions

and transfers (675,300) (64,853) 38,864 (701,289)

Transfers in 55,000 - - 55,000
Change in net position (620,300) (64,853) 38,864 (646,289)
Net position - beginning of year 1,543,309 917,112 1,108,065 3,568,486
Net position - end of year S 923,009 S 852,259 S 1,146,929 $ 2,922,197

The notes to the financial statements al
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Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Statement of Cash Flows -

Proprietary Funds

Water and
For the year ended September 30, 2024 Sewer Solid Waste Stormwater Total
Operating Activities
Cash received from customers S 828,985 S 366,009 $ 191,033 $ 1,386,027
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (714,230) (432,421) (28,823) (1,175,474)
Cash payments to employees for services (329,317) - (118,390) (447,707)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (214,562) (66,412) 43,820 (237,154)
Noncapital Financing Activities
Borrowings from other funds 411,823 - - 411,823
Loans and reimbursements to other funds - 66,412 (134,289) (67,877)
Transfers in from other funds 55,000 - - 55,000
Net cash provided by (used in)
noncapital financing activities 466,823 66,412 (134,289) 398,946
Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (92,357) - (14,100) (106,457)
Principal paid on notes payable (81,895) - - (81,895)
Net cash used in capital and
related financing activities (174,252) - (14,100) (188,352)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 78,009 - (104,569) (26,560)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,033,963 - 104,569 1,138,532
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year S 1,111,972 S - S - $ 1,111,972
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Operating income (loss) before contributions S (675,300) S (64,853) S 38,864 $ (701,289)
Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation 396,239 - 1,173 397,412
Change in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable (9,295) (1,559) (767) (11,621)
Accounts payable 80,373 - 2,749 83,122
Accrued liabilities 22 - 1,307 1,329
Customer deposits (5,522) - - (5,522)
Compensated absences (1,079) - 494 (585)
Total adjustments 460,738 (1,559) 4,956 464,135
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ) (214,562) S (66,412) $ 43,820 S (237,154)

The notes to the financial statements al
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position -
Fiduciary Fund

Police Pension

September 30, 2024 Trust Fund

Assets
Money market mutual funds S 82,362
Investments, at fair value 2,957,896
Accrued interest and dividends 7,075
Accounts receivable 1,622
3,048,955

Total assets

Net Position

Restricted for pension benefits S 3,048,955
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position -

Fiduciary Fund

Police Pensions

September 30, 2024 Trust Fund
Additions
Contributions

Plan members S 41,816
Total contributions 41,816
Investment earnings

Interest 73,088

Unrealized gains on investments 563,259

Investment income, net of investment expense 116,575
Total investment earnings 752,922
Total additions 794,738
Deductions

Benefit payments including refunds of contributions 67,288

Administrative expenses 9,868
Total deductions 77,156
Change in net position 717,582
Net position restricted for pension benefits, beginning of year 2,331,373

Net position restricted for pension benefits, end of year

S 3,048,955
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Town of Eatonville, Florida (the Town) was first incorporated on August 18, 1887. The Town was
subsequently abolished and simultaneously recreated on June 14, 1967 under the Laws of Florida
Chapter 67-1361 House Bill No. 876. Situated on the northeast corner of Orange County,
approximately 10 miles north of Orlando, Eatonville is popularly known as “The first municipality in
the United States of America incorporated by persons of African-American descent.” The Town
operates under a Mayor and Council form of government and provides the following services as
authorized by its charter: general government, public safety, public works, culture, recreation, and
water works.

The Town maintains its accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP), as applied to governmental units, which are promulgated by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). A summary of the Town's significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the accompanying financial statements follows.

The Reporting Entity

The Town is a municipal corporation with a five-member Town Council comprised of the Mayor and
four Council persons. As required by GAAP, these financial statements represent the Town of
Eatonville (the primary government) and the Town of Eatonville Community Redevelopment Agency
(CRA), a component unit, for which the Town of Eatonville is considered to be financially accountable.
The CRA is presented as a blended component unit, although a legally separate entity, because it is
in substance part of the Town’s operations and the Town’s Council is its governing body. Therefore,
the accounts of the CRA are combined with the accounts of the primary government and are
presented as a special revenue fund and issued separate stand-alone audited financial statements.
The Town has no component units that require discrete presentation.

Pursuant to the requirements of Chapter 163, Part Il of Florida Statutes, the Town, with the consent
of Orange County, and through a Town Ordinance, created the CRA to foster improvement activities
in Eatonville. The CRA uses future tax increment revenues to fund a variety of improvement projects.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the Town and its component unit.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues,
are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and
charges for support.
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function
or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included
among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus
and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as
current financial resources or economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of
transactions or events for recognition in the financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes
are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility and timing requirements imposed by the provider have
been met.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within
60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures
related to compensated absences, and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is
due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance
of long-term debt and acquisitions under lease liabilities are reported as other financing sources.
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Property taxes, utility taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, charges for services, rental income
and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual
and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Expenditure-driven grants are
recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other eligibility
requirements have been met, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability
period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year-end). All other revenue items are considered
to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the Town.

The proprietary and pension trust funds are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are interrelated.
The governmental activities column incorporates data from governmental funds and internal service
funds, while business-type activities incorporate data from the Town’s enterprise funds. Separate
financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds,
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the Town’s funds, including its fiduciary
funds. Separate statements for each fund category—governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary—are
presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds,
and fiduciary funds each displayed in a separate column. Major individual governmental and
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

The General fund is the Town’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources except
those accounted for in another fund.

The Community Redevelopment Agency fund accounts for all sources and uses of financial resources

provided by increased ad valorem tax value in the geographically designated area. Resources are
consumed in operations and improvements specifically designated by the CRA.
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
The Town reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Water and Sewer fund accounts for the operating activities related to providing water treatment
and distribution services, and sewage treatment to all areas within the Town limits.

The Solid Waste fund accounts for the Town’s garbage and recycling pick up and disposal activities.

The Stormwater fund accounts for the construction and maintenance of the Town’s stormwater
systems and pollution from stormwater runoff.

The Town reports the following fiduciary fund:

The Police Pension Trust Fund accounts for funds in the same manner as the proprietary funds, using
the same measurement focus and basis of accounting. The trust fund accounts for the assets of the
police officers’ pension plan. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which
contributions are due. Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer has made
a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with the terms of the Plan.

During the course of operations, the Town has activity between funds for various purposes. Any
residual balances outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to other funds. While these
balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation
of the government-wide financial statements. Balances between the funds included in governmental
activities (i.e., the governmental and internal service funds) are eliminated so that only the net
amount is included as internal balances in the governmental activities column.

Similarly, balances between the funds included in business-type activities (i.e., the enterprise funds)
are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal balances in the business-type
activities column.

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds. In
fund financial statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. While
reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the
government-wide financial statements.

Transfers between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net
amount is included as transfers in the governmental activities column.

Similarly, balances between the funds included in business-type activities are eliminated so that only

the net amount is included as transfers in the busine = =.activit =N,
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for
the General Fund and the Community Redevelopment Fund.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and department. The Town’s department
heads may make transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers of appropriations
between departments require the approval of the council. The legal level of budgetary control (i.e.,
the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is the fund level.

Appropriations in all budgeted governmental funds lapse at the end of the fiscal year even if they
have related encumbrances. Encumbrances are commitments related to unperformed (executory)
contracts for goods or services (i.e., purchase orders, contracts, and commitments). Encumbrance
accounting is utilized to the extent necessary to assure effective budgetary control and accountability
and to facilitate effective cash planning and control. While all appropriations and encumbrances lapse
at year end, valid outstanding encumbrances (those for which performance under the executory
contract is expected in the next year) are re-appropriated and become part of the subsequent year’s
budget pursuant to state regulations.

Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position or Equity
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Town’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments

Investments for the Town are reported at fair value (generally based on quoted market prices).
Receivables and Payables

Unbilled receivables — An amount for unbilled revenue is recorded in the Water and Sewer, Solid
Waste and Stormwater Utility funds for services rendered, but not yet billed as of the end of the fiscal
year. The receivable is derived from the cycle billings generated subsequent to fiscal year end and
prorated for usage in September.

Allowance for doubtful accounts — Accounts receivable have been reported net of the allowance for

doubtful accounts. Accounts receivable in excess of 60 days are subject to being considered as
uncollectible.
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position or Equity (Continued)

Leases Receivable - The Town’s leases receivable are measured at the present value of lease
payments expected to be received during the least term. Under the lease agreement, the Town may
receive variable lease payments that are dependent upon the lessee’s revenue. The variable
payments are recorded as an inflow of resources in the period the payment is received.

Unearned revenue — Unearned revenue recorded on the governmental fund balance sheet
represents amounts received before eligibility requirements are met.

Interfund Activities and Transactions

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as “due from other
funds” or “due to other funds” within the fund financial statements. Long-term borrowings between
funds are classified as “advances to other funds” or “advances from other funds” in the fund financial
statements. These amounts are eliminated in the governmental and business-type activities columns
of the statement of net position, except for any residual balance outstanding.

Interfund transactions are reflected as services provided, reimbursements, or transfers. Services
provided, deemed to be at or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses.
Reimbursements are when a fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefitting fund, and
reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers.
Transfers between governmental or business-type funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to
the government-wide presentation.

Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded
as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of prepaid
items is recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and right-to-use assets are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of
$1,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost
or estimated historical cost if purchased. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at
the date of the donation.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do. =2t 2dd to tha 222 of the assot or matariathe
extend asset lives are not capitalized.
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position or Equity (Continued)
Capital Assets (Continued)

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are incurred. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part
of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. There was no capitalized interest during the current
year.

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. The other property, plant, equipment, and
infrastructure of the primary government are depreciated using the straight line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Years
Buildings and structures 7-50
Improvements 10-15
Machinery and equipment 3
Vehicles 5

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.

The Town has one item that qualifies for reporting as deferred outflows of resources, the deferred
outflows related to pensions, reported in the government-wide statement of net position. The
deferred outflows related to pensions are an aggregate of items related to pensions as calculated in
accordance with GASB Codification Section P20: Pension Activities — Reporting for Benefits Provided
through Trusts That Meet Specified Criteria. The deferred outflows related to pensions will be
recognized as either pension expense or a reduction in the net pension liability in future reporting
years.
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position or Equity (Continued)
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (Continued)

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Town has two items that qualify
for reporting as deferred inflows of resources. The deferred inflows related to pensions are an
aggregate of items related to pensions, reported in the government-wide statement of net position.
The deferred inflows related to pensions are an aggregate of items related to pensions as calculated
in accordance with GASB Codification Section P20: Pension Activities — Reporting for Benefits Provided
through Trusts That Meet Specified Criteria. The deferred inflows related to pensions will be
recognized as a reduction to pension expense in future reporting years. The deferred inflows related
to leases are associated with amounts owed to the Town, as lessor, by entities leasing the Town’s
assets.

Compensated Absences

The Town’s policy permits employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay
benefits. There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the Town does not have a policy
to pay any amounts when employees separate from service with the government. All vacation pay is
accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements.

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities or business-type activities statement of net position.

Leases

Lease contracts that provide the Town with control of a non-financial asset, such as land, buildings or
equipment, for a period of time in excess of twelve months are reported as a leased asset with a
related lease liability. The lease liability is recorded at the present value of future lease payments,
including fixed payments, variable payments based on an index or fixed rate and reasonably certain
residual guarantees.
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position or Equity (Continued)
Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position, and additions to/deductions from the plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined
on the same basis as they are reported by the Town of Eatonville Municipal Officers’ Retirement Trust
Fund. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at
fair value.

Categories and Classification of Net Position and Fund Balance

Net position flow assumptions — Sometimes the Town will fund outlays for a particular purpose from
both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to
calculate the amounts to report as restricted — net position and unrestricted — net position in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about
the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the Town’s policy to consider
restricted — net position to have been depleted before unrestricted — net position is applied.

Fund balance flow assumptions — Sometimes the Town will fund outlays for a particular purpose from
both restricted and unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund
balance). In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and
unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption must be
made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the Town’s policy to
consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components of
unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used
for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance.
Unassigned fund balance is applied last.

Fund balance policies — Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based
on the nature of any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The Town itself
can establish limitations on the use of resources through either a commitment (committed fund
balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance).

The provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions, specifies the following classifications:

-32

71




Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position or Equity (Continued)
Categories and Classification of Net Position and Fund Balance (Continued)

Nonspendable fund balance — Nonspendable fund balances are amounts that cannot be spent
because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact.

Restricted fund balance — Restricted fund balances are restricted when constraints placed on the use
of resources are either: (a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance — The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be
used only for the specific purposes determined by a formal action of the Town’s highest level of
decision-making authority. The governing council is the highest level of decision-making authority for
the Town that can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund
balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a similar action
is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or revise the limitation.

Assigned fund balance — Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used
by the Town for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. The
governing council (council) has by resolution authorized the Town manager to assign fund balance.
The council may also assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund balance to cover a gap
between estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year’s appropriated budget.
Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily. In other words, an additional
action does not normally have to be taken for the removal of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed
above, an additional action is essential to either remove or revise a commitment.

Unassigned fund balance — Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General
Fund.

Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

Program revenues - Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a
given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions (including special assessments) that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. All
taxes, including those dedicated for specific purposes, and other internally dedicated resources are
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.

r - ]

Property taxes - The Town levied a millage rate of ST 7272 mer $1,077 cessed ve' e for th
year ended September 30, 2024. Orange County, Flc dabills' adr :eivesp: 'ment’ 51 :lladv orem
taxes levied by the Town. Payments are then remiti d to the ow
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses (Continued)

All property is assessed according to its fair market value on January 1 of each year, and at that time
a lien is placed on the property for the taxes. The tax levy of the Town is established by the Town
Council prior to October 1 of each year. The Orange County Property Appraiser incorporates the
Town’s millage into the total tax levy; which also includes Orange County, the Orange County School
Board, and the St. John River Water Management District’s tax requirement.

All taxes are billed on November 1 of each year or as soon thereafter as the assessment roll is certified
and delivered to the Tax Collector. All unpaid taxes become delinquent on April 1 following the year
in which they are assessed. Discounts are allowed for early payment at the rate of 4% in the month
of November, 3% in the month of December, 2% in the month of January and 1% in the month of
February. The taxes paid in March are not discounted.

Proprietary funds operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses — Proprietary funds distinguish
operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Water and
Sewer Fund, Solid Waste Fund, and Stormwater Fund are charges to customers for sales and services.
The Water and Sewer Fund also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to
recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for
expenditure of monies are recorded as reservations of budget, is employed as an extension of the
statutory required budgetary process. At year-end, outstanding encumbrances represent material
purchase commitments for goods and services which were ordered, budgeted, and appropriated, but
had not been received or completed at date. Although encumbrances lapse at year-end, it is the
intention to substantially honor these encumbrances under authority provided in the subsequent
year’s budget. The town did not have any significant encumbrances outstanding as of September 30,
2024,
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make various estimates. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term are related to
allowance for doubtful accounts and pension liability.

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were
available to be issued, DATE. See Note 5 for relevant disclosure. No subsequent events occurring after
this date have been evaluated for inclusion in these financial statements.

Recently Issued and Implemented Accounting Pronouncements

GASB Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections. This Statement establishes
accounting and financial reporting requirements for (a) accounting changes and (b) the correction of an
error in previously issued financial statements (error correction). This Statement defines accounting
changes as changes in accounting principles, changes in accounting estimates, and changes to or within
the financial reporting entity and describes the transactions or other events that constitute those
changes. This Statement prescribes the accounting and financial reporting for (1) each type of accounting
change and (2) error corrections. This Statement requires that (a) changes in accounting principles and
error corrections be reported retroactively by restating prior periods, (b) changes to or within the
financial reporting entity be reported by adjusting beginning balances of the current period, and (c)
changes in accounting estimates be reported prospectively by recognizing the change in the current
period. This Statement requires disclosure in notes to financial statements of descriptive information
about accounting changes and error corrections, such as their nature. In addition, information about the
quantitative effects on beginning balances of each accounting change and error correction should be
disclosed by reporting unit in a tabular format to reconcile beginning balances as previously reported to
beginning balances as restated. Furthermore, this Statement addresses how information that is affected
by a change in accounting principle or error correction should be presented in required supplementary
information (RSI) and supplementary information (Sl). There were no significant impacts of
implementing this Statement.

The Government Accounting Standards Board has issued statements that will become effective in future
years. These statements are as follows:

GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the
information needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition and measurement guidance
for compensated absences. That objective is achieved by aligning the recognition and measurement
guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously required disclosures. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal vears beginnine after December 15, 2023, and all
reporting periods thereafter. The Town is curren  / evalu ting he req. remen ;5 »f the bove
statements and the impact on reporting.
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2: DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS
Cash Deposits

The cash deposits are held by a bank that qualifies as a public depository under the Florida Security
and Public Deposits Act, as required by Chapter 280, Florida Statutes, and are considered fully
insured.

Investments

Florida Statutes authorize the Town to invest in the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund
administered by the State Board of Administration, obligations of the U.S. Treasury, and
interest-bearing time deposits and savings accounts held in Federal or State chartered banks and
savings and loan associations doing business in Florida provided that such deposits are secured by
collateral as may be prescribed. It is the Town’s policy to only invest funds in vehicles specifically
authorized by Florida Statutes. The Town does not have formal policies relating to credit risk or
interest rate risk aside from the policy of only investing in funds administered by the State Board of
Administration and obligations of the U.S. government.

At the close of the fiscal year, the Town did not hold any investments in the Local Government Surplus
Funds Trust Fund (Florida PRIME) external investment pool.

Custodial credit risk — Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk in the event of the failure of a
depository financial institution a government may not be able to recover deposits. Monies placed on
deposit with financial institutions in the form of demand deposits, time deposits or certificate of
deposits are defined as public deposits. The financial institutions in which the Town places its deposits
are certified as “qualified public depositories,” as required under the Florida Security for Public
Deposits Act. For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the Town will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party.

As of September 30, 2024, the Town’s pension investments are held in street name in the form of
stock, debt securities and U.S. government bonds through a financial brokerage firms segregated out
from the assets and investments held by other clients of the investment firm and their own assets.

Interest rate risk — Interest rate risk is the possibility that interest rates will rise and reduce the fair
value of an investment. The Town manages its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates through its adopted investment policies. The Town limits the effective duration of its
investment portfolio through the adoption of nationally recognized risk measure benchmarks.

Credit risk — Section I150: Investments of the GASB Codification requires that governments provide

information about credit risk associated with their investments by disclosing the credit rating of
investments in debt securities as described by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations.
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2: DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

The Town has limited its credit risk by limiting investments to the safest types of securities, primarily
government investment pools. The Town’s investment objectives are prioritized by safety, liquidity
andyield. Time Deposits, including Certificates of Deposit, are collateralized under the State of Florida
Qualified Public Depository Program, whereby member institutions are collectively responsible for
any individual member’s default.

Concentration risk — Section 150: Investments of the GASB Codification requires disclosures of
investments in any one issuer that represents five percent or more of total investments, excluding
investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government, investments in mutual funds,
external investments pools and other pooled investments. The Town’s investment policy does not
address concentration risk.

Foreign currency risk — The Town’s pension trust funds’ investments are not exposed to foreign
currency risk. The Town's investment policy of the Town’s pension trust funds do not address foreign
currency risk.

Fair Value — GASB Codification Section 3100: Fair Value Measurements establishes a framework for
measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest
priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under the codification are described as follows:

Level 1 (L1): Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets
or liabilities in active markets that the Town has the ability to access.

Level 2 (L2):  Inputs to the valuation methodology include:

e quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

e quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;

e inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;

e inputsthat are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data
by correlation or other means.
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2: DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

Level 3 (L3):  Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.
Credit Maturities (in Years)
Quality Less More
Investment Type Type Rating Carrying Amount Than 1 1to5 5to 10 Than 10
Money market mutual funds Money Market ~ NR* S 82,362 S 82,362 S - S - S -
Corporate Bonds Fixed Income Aaa 3,553 - - - 3,553
Corporate Bonds Fixed Income Aa2 3,814 - 1,892 - 1,922
Corporate Bonds Fixed Income Aa3 7,473 - - - 7,473
Corporate Bonds Fixed Income Al 34,139 - 20,775 5,915 7,449
Corporate Bonds Fixed Income A2 8,858 4,874 - - 3,984
Corporate Bonds Fixed Income A3 15,471 - 13,745 1,726 -
Corporate Bonds Fixed Income Bal 4,459 - - 4,459 -
Corporate Bonds Fixed Income Baal 33,004 4,983 10,875 8,253 8,893
Corporate Bonds Fixed Income Baa2 37,373 - 17,637 3,787 15,949
Corporate Bonds Fixed Income Baa3 86,941 9,753 66,484 5,350 5,354
Corporate Bonds Fixed Income NR 47,262 - 11,952 - 35,310
Corporate Bonds Fixed Income WR 5,745 - - - 5,745
Municipal Bonds Fixed Income Aaa 4,686 - - - 4,686
Municipal Bonds Fixed Income Aal 3,386 - - - 3,386
Municipal Bonds Fixed Income Aa2 1,845 - - - 1,845
Municipal Bonds Fixed Income Aa3 6,280 - - - 6,280
Municipal Bonds Fixed Income NR 4,319 - - - 4,319
Government Bonds Fixed Income Aaa 164,323 16,723 45,535 - 102,065
Government Sponsored Bonds Fixed Income Aaa 18,667 - - - 18,667
Mortgage Pools Fixed Income Aaa 390,795 13 79,388 64,943 246,451
Mortgage Pools Fixed Income NR 8,468 - - 23 8,445
Total debt securities 890,861 36,346 268,283 94,456 491,776
Common Stock Equity NR* 2,067,035 2,067,035 - - -
Total pension investments S 3,040,258 $ 2,185,743 S 268,283 $ 94,456 S 491,776

The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used
need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2: DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Town’s assets at fair value as
of September 30, 2024:

Fair Value Amortized
Investments Carrying Amount Level 1 Level 2 Cost
Money market mutual funds S 82,362 S - S - S 82,362
U.S. treasury bonds and notes 164,323 - 164,323 -
U.S. government agencies 18,667 - 18,667 -
Asset-backed securities 399,263 - 399,263 -
Muncipial bonds 20,516 - 20,516 -
Corporate bonds and notes 288,092 - 288,092 -
Common stock 2,067,035 2,067,035 - -
Total Investments S 3,040,258 S 2,067,035 S 890,861 S 82,362

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.
There have been no changes in the methodologies used at September 30, 2024.

Common stock — Common stock classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using quoted
market prices for those securities.

Asset backed securities — Asset backed securities classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are
valued using a matrix pricing technicque based on the price or yield of similar securities.

Corporate and government bonds — Bonds classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued
using pricing models maximizing the use of observable inputs for similar securities. This includes
basing value on yields currently available on comparable securities of issuers with similar credit
ratings.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the Town believes its valuation
methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result
in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2: DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
Accounts Receivable

For the Water and Sewer, Solid Waste, and Stormwater Utility Funds, operating revenues are
generally recognized on the basis of cycle billings rendered monthly. The amount of services delivered
for the period from the last billing date to September 30, 2024 (unbilled receivable), is estimated and
accrued at year end. The Town deems all amounts over 60 days uncollectable therefore an allowance
for doubtful accounts has been established equivalent to the last two months of billing. If payments
are not received from customers, services are shut off and deposits are applied against negative
balances.

All account receivables are shown net of allowances for uncollectible accounts for governmental
funds. The accounts receivable and allowance for uncollectible accounts at September 30, 2024, were
as follows:

General Water and Solid
Fund Sewer Waste Stormwater Total
Receivables
Customer receivables
and unbilled revenues S 45,263 S 317,919 S 172,312 S 67,894 S 603,388
Franchise and utility 243,169 - - - 243,169
Total receivables 288,432 317,919 172,312 67,894 846,557
Less allowance for
uncollectibles (30,517) (202,154) (105,923) (36,700) (375,294)
Total receivables, net S 257,915 § 115,765 S 66,389 S 31,194 S 471,263

Property taxes are considered fully collected during and prior to the end of the fiscal year. Therefore,
no material amounts of property taxes are receivable as of September 30, 2024. There are no other
reserves for receivables recorded by the Town as of September 30, 2024.
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2: DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
Capital Assets

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets during the year ended September 30, 2024:

Beginning Balance Additions Deletions  Ending Balance

Governmental activities
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land S 1,014,679 S - S - $ 1,014,679
Total capital assets not being depreciated 1,014,679 - - 1,014,679
Capital assets, being depreciated

Infrastructure 5,269,416 - - 5,269,416

Buildings and improvements 3,342,152 - - 3,342,152

Improvements other than buildings 898,082 468,712 - 1,366,794

Equipment 2,195,705 85,725 - 2,281,430
Total capital assets, being depreciated 11,705,355 554,437 - 12,259,792
Less accumulated depreciation for

Infrastructure (1,773,213) (121,916) - (1,895,129)

Buildings and improvements (1,876,128) (68,506) - (1,944,634)

Improvements other than buildings (746,676) (68,060) - (814,736)

Equipment (2,027,926) (116,049) - (2,143,975)
Total accumulated depreciation (6,423,943) (374,531) - (6,798,474)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 5,281,412 179,906 - 5,461,318
Right-to-use lease assets, being amortized

Equipment - 131,044 - 131,044
Total right-to-use lease assets, being amortized - 131,044 - 131,044
Less accumulated amortization for

Equipment - (43,681) - (43,681)
Total accumulated amortization - (43,681) - (43,681)
Right-to-use lease assets being amortized, net - 87,363 - 87,363
Governmental activities capital assets, net S 6,296,091 S 267,269 S - $ 6,563,360
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2: DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Capital Assets (Continued)

Beginning Balance Additions Deletions  Ending Balance

Business-type activities
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land S 2,500 $ - S - S 2,500
Total capital assets not being depreciated 2,500 - - 2,500
Capital assets being depreciated

Buildings and improvements 11,818,872 77,670 - 11,896,542

Equipment 429,832 28,787 - 458,619
Total capital assets being depreciated 12,248,704 106,457 - 12,355,161
Less accumulated depreciation for

Buildings and improvements (4,746,301) (421,402) - (5,167,703)

Equipment (362,586) (6,318) 30,308 (338,596)
Total accumulated depreciation (5,108,887) (427,720) 30,308 (5,506,299)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 7,139,817 (321,263) 30,308 6,848,862
Business-type activities capital assets, net S 7,142,317 S (321,263) §$ 30,308 $ 6,851,362

Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary
government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government S 203,650
Public safety 64,092
Physical environment 122,049
Culture and recreation 28,421
Total S 418,212

Business-type activities:

Water and Sewer S 396,239
Stormwater 1,173
Total S 397,412
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2: DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
Long-Term Debt
FMLC Series Note Payable

In fiscal year 2016, the Town entered into an agreement with the Florida Municipal Loan Council to
advance refund the Series 2005B through the issuance of FMLC Series 2016. The loan contains certain
filing requirements. The loan is payable annually on October 1 through October 2030. The interest is
payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1 through October 2030, with interest rates from 2.00%
to 5.00% over the term of the loan. The loan agreement provides for events of default upon failure
to timely make loan payments or other specified payments when due, and failure to observe and
perform any covenant, condition or agreement, other than loan payment requirements, for a period
of more than 30 days after notice of noncompliance. Covenants beyond timely loan payment
requirements include incurrence of additional debt secured by non-ad valorem tax revenues and
timely submission of financial information. In the event of default, the lender may call the loan and
take other actions to collect amounts due. The Town did not meet the time deadline specified in the
loan agreement for submission of audited financial statements; however, this covenant violation was
not an event of default. As of September 30, 2024, the principal outstanding on the note was
$460,000.

State Revolving Loan Fund

In 2012, the Town entered into a loan agreement with the State of Florida Department of
Environmental Protection for the Wastewater Facilities Improvement Projects. Total draws on this
loan amounted to $245,057. The loan was a part of an agreement where a grant paid $41,663 toward
the loan, $33,937 of which was applied to principal and the rest was applied to interest or other
charges. The loan specifies semiannual loan payments of $6,685, including interest at 2.10%, which
is payable semiannually on August 15 and February 15 of each year.

In 2014, the Town entered into another loan agreement with the State of Florida Department of
Environmental Protection. This loan is part of an agreement that provides principal forgiveness. Of
the total $4,480,117 awarded under this agreement, $2,885,195 was forgiven and will not be subject
to repayment. The principal forgiveness portion was recorded as capital contributions. The remaining
$1,594,922 was recorded as a loan payable. The loan specifies semiannual loan payments of $32,407
including interest at .932%, which is payable semiannually on November 15 and May 15 of each year.

In 2018, the Town entered into another loan agreement with the State of Florida Department of
Environmental Protection. This loan is part of an agreement that provides principal forgiveness. Of
the total $165,699 awarded under this agreement, $82,850 was forgiven and will not be subject to
repayment. The principal forgiveness portion was recorded as capital contributions. The amounts
disbursed as of September 30, 2020 and 2021 were $71,019 and $11,831, respectively and have been
recorded as a loan payable. The loan specifies semiannual loan payments of $2,233 including interest
at .37%, which is payable semiannually on Septembg* 70 2d Mar¢' =" 7" ~ach year
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2: DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
Long-Term Debt (Continued)
State Revolving Loan Fund (Continued)

Each of the State Revolving Fund Loans contain covenants that provide for a revenue coverage ratio
of 1.15 times debt service payments. As of September 30, 2024, the loans were not compliant with
this provision, resulting in a loan default. The State of Florida Department of Environmental
Protection may seek remedies in the event of default by accelerating loan payments, increasing the
financing rate, intercepting delinquent amounts from unobligated funds due to the Town through
the State, or applying for a court to appoint a receiver to manage the water and sewer systems,
including setting rates, collecting revenues and applying those revenues to the loan balance. The
State of Florida Department of Environmental Protection has agreed to forbear acceleration of loan
payments providing the Town takes certain curative actions.

The loan agreements also contain a covenant for the Town to file financial statements timely in
accordance with Rules of the Auditor General, for which the Town was in noncompliance; however,

this noncompliance was not an event of default.

As of September 30, 2024, the principal outstanding on the state revolving loan funds were
$1,521,553.

System Revenue Bond

In 2020, the Town entered into a loan with USDA Rural Development for $203,000, as part of a
replacement project. The loan bears interest at an annual rate of 1.75%, with an annual installment
of $7,099 to begin December 1, 2020. The loan matures on December 6, 2059.

In 2020, the Town entered into a loan with USDA Rural Development for $79,000 as part of a
replacement project. The loan bears interest at an annual rate of 1.75%, with an annual installment
of $2,763 to begin December 1, 2020. The loan matures on December 6, 2059.

As of September 30, 2024, the principal outstanding on the system revenue bonds is $260,195.
Leases-Lessee

The Town has entered into a lease agreement as a lessee for financing the acquisition of equipment.

Total annual lease payments that the Town paid for the year ended September 30, 2024, was
$29,870. The lease has a 4 year term.
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2: DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024 as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Governmental activities
Note payable

FMLC Series 2017 S 520,000 S - S (60,000) $ 460,000 S 60,000
Total notes from direct borrowings 520,000 - (60,000) 460,000 60,000
Other liabilities:

Unamortized premium 18,659 - (2,664) 15,995 2,665

Lease liabilities 900 131,044 (25,109) 106,835 24,924

Compensated absences 104,361 95,481 (85,435) 114,407 84,716
Total other liabilities 123,920 226,525 (113,208) 237,237 112,305
Governmental activities
long-term liabilities S 643,920 $ 226,525 S (173,208) $ 697,237 S 172,305

Compensated absences are generally liquidated by the general fund for governmental activities.

The following table indicates future debt service requirements for Governmental Activities:

For the year ended September 30: Principal Interest Total

2025 S 60,000 S 14,138 S 74,138
2026 60,000 12,863 72,863
2027 65,000 11,456 76,456
2028 65,000 10,725 75,725
2029 70,000 9,913 79,913
2030-2031 140,000 15,050 155,050
Total S 460,000 S 74,144 S 534,144

The following is a schedule of minimum future lease payments from lease agreements:

Principal Interest
For the years ending September 30, Payments Expense Total
2025 S 24,924 S 4,946 S 29,870
2026 26,078 3,792 29,870
2027 27,285 2,585 29,870
2028 28,5 , 1,327 sy
Total S 158, S 12,6/, % 1 3,480
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Note 2: DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

The following table represents debt service of business-type activities:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Business-type activities
Notes payable

SRF Loan WW480200 $ 156,593 S - S (10,134) $ 146,459 S 10,348

SRF Loan WW480202 1,368,767 - (60,792) 1,307,975 52,439

SRF Loan WW480240 71,324 - (4,205) 67,119 4,221

System Revenue Bond 2019A 192,173 - (5,045) 187,128 3,802

System Revenue Bond 2019B 74,786 - (1,719) 73,067 1,479
Total notes from direct borrowings 1,863,643 - (81,895) 1,781,748 72,289
Other liabilities:

Compensated absences 10,593 14,158 (14,742) 10,009 9,664
Total other liabilities 10,593 14,158 (14,742) 10,009 9,664
Business-type activities
long-term liabilities $ 1,874,236 S 14,158 S (96,637) $ 1,791,757 S 81,953

The following table represents future debt service requirements of business-type activities:

For the year ended September 30: Principal Interest Total

2025 S 72,289 S 20,059 S 92,348
2026 74,007 19,249 93,256
2027 73,976 18,429 92,405
2028 74,816 17,597 92,413
2029 75,692 16,729 92,421
2030-2034 389,673 69,645 459,318
2035-2039 382,295 48,870 431,165
2040-2044 342,542 43,765 386,307
2045-2049 197,737 26,511 224,248
2050-2054 42,127 5,964 48,091
2055-2059 56,594 1,819 58,413
Total S 1,781,748 S 288,637 S 2,070,385
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2: DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
Pledged Revenues

The Town has notes outstanding at September 30, 2024, for which revenues of the Town have been
pledged for repayment. Revenues pledged to repay these obligations are as follows:

Future Current Current Year Current
Amount Principal and Pledged Principal Percentage
Issued Interest Revenue and Interest  of Revenue

Business-type activities
Revenue Notes

State Revolving Fund Loans

Maturity: 2037-2047

Interest rate: 2.50% S 1,907,266 $ 1,694,016 $ (646,289) S 82,527 (12.77%)
Purpose: Wastewater Facility Improvements

Pledged revenue: Charges for services

Leases-Lessor

The Town accounts for leases in accordance with GASB 87, Leases. The Town’s operations consist of
agreements for use of a building operating a library branch and cellphone towers.

A lease agreement allows use of the building on the corner of Kennedy Boulevard and College Street
for the operation of a library branch. The lease will terminate in 2024, at which time all additions to
the property will revert to the Town. Lessee has the option to extend the lease for two additional
five (5) year terms.

A lease agreement allows use of a structure for a cell tower. The lease will terminate in 2025, with
options to extend for four additional five (5) year terms.

The town recognized $37,902 for lease revenue principal and $13,080 of lease interest for the year
ended September 30, 2024.

- 47

86




Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2: DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Net Investment In Capital Assets
The elements of this calculation are as follows:

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
Capital assets (net) S 6,563,360 S 6,851,362 $ 13,414,722
Plus unamortized deferred bond cost 3,692 - 3,692
Less outstanding debt related to capital assets (582,830) (1,781,748) (2,364,578)
Net investment in capital assets S 5,984,222 S 5,069,614 $ 11,053,836

Risk Management

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of
property and other assets; errors and omissions by employees; and natural disasters, particularly
during the hurricane season of June through November. The Town has purchased various types of
insurance to protect itself. There have been no changes in insurance coverage during the current
fiscal year. There were no changes in insurance coverage from the previous year. The Town does not
participate in a risk pool and does not retain any of the risks of loss.

Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already
collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures that
may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the government
expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The government is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not
presently determinable, in the opinion of the Town’s counsel, the resolution of these matters will not
have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Town.

Fund Balance Deficit

The Water and Sewer Fund had a deficit balance in unrestricted net position of $4,106,178 at

September 30, 2024. The Water and Sewer Fund deficit is anticipated to be funded through enhanced
revenues from rate increases and reduction of expenses.
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Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3: RETIREMENT PLANS
Employee Retirement Plans and Pension Plans

The Town participates in two public employee retirement plans. These plans are a single employer
defined benefit police officer’s pension plan for its sworn police officers (Town of Eatonville Municipal
Police Officers’ Retirement Trust Fund) (the Plan) and a defined contribution plan for all other Town
employees meeting certain age and length of service requirements. The Plan is maintained as a
pension trust fund and included as part of the Town’s reporting entity. The Plan does not issue a
stand-alone financial report.

Defined Contribution Plan

The Town’s Defined Contribution Plan and Trust (the Defined Contribution Plan) is an adoption of the
Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund Defined Contribution Plan and Trust, which is administered by
the Florida League of Cities, Inc. The Trustee for the Defined Contribution Plan’s assets is the CitiStreet
Retirement Service. The Defined Contribution Plan was established effective October 1, 1989 by
ordinance. There were no amendments during the year.

All general employees, except police officers, are eligible to participate in the Defined Contribution
Plan provided they have completed one (1) year of service. Since this plan qualifies as a defined
contribution plan, which is administered in its entirety under a pool arrangement by the Florida
League of Cities, Inc., the assets, liabilities, net position and operations are not recorded within the
Town’s financial statements.

Contributions

The Town Council is responsible for setting the employer’s contribution annually during budget
adoption. The Town budgets the lesser of $28,047 or five percent (5%) of eligible compensation.
Contributions to the Defined Contribution Plan are discretionary on the part of the Town. Employees
may contribute up to a maximum of ten percent (10%) of covered compensation. Under the
provisions of the Defined Contribution Plan, employees are eligible for normal retirement at age 65
with 10 years of credited service.
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Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3: RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)
Contributions (Continued)

An employee who leaves the employment of the Town is entitled to all their contributions and a
portion of the Town’s contributions based on the following vesting schedule:

Percentage of

Years of Service Balance Vested

1 year but less than 5 0%
5 years but less than 6 50%
6 years but less than 7 60%
7 years but less than 8 70%
8 years but less than 9 80%
9 years but less than 10 90%
10 or more years 100%

There were no employee contributions to the Defined Contribution Plan during the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2024. The employer’s contributions were $22,499 for the vyear ended
September 30, 2024.

Pension Plan

The Municipal Police Officers’ and Firefighters’ Retirement Trust Funds Office, housed within the
Division of Retirement, is the state entity responsible for administrative oversight of the Police
Officers’ Pension Trust Fund. The Plan was established on December 18, 1972 by Town Ordinance 72-
1008, providing for pension, death and disability benefits. It is subject to Provisions of Chapter 185,
Florida Statutes.

The Plan, in accordance with the above Statute, is governed by a five-member pension Board. Two
police officers who are elected by a majority of the members of the Plan, two current residents of
the Town who are appointed by the Town Council, and a fifth member who is elected by the other
four members constitute the Pension Board. The Town and the Plan participants are obligated to
fund all plan costs based upon actuarial valuations. The Town is authorized to establish benefit levels
and the Board of Trustees approves the actuarial assumptions used in determination of contribution
levels.
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Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3: RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

Pension Plan (Continued)

Benefits under the Plan are computed on the basis of age, years of service, average final
compensation, and credited service. Members are vested after 10 years of credited service and the
retirement age is 55 for normal retirement or 50 for early retirement. Non-vested members are
entitled to 100% refund of their accumulated contributions, without interest, if they discontinue

employment prior to the 10 year vesting period.

The makeup of plan participants as of September 30, 2024 valuation was as follows:

Police

Plan Membership Employees
Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently

receiving benefits 2

Inactive plan members entitled to, but not yet receiving benefits -

Active plan members 11

13

Total plan membership

Plan participants contribute 5% of earnings. The Town contributes the remaining amount necessary
for payment of normal costs and amortization of the accrued past service liability as provided for in
Part VIl of Chapter 112, Florida Statutes. Plan members vest after ten years of service and are eligible
for distribution of accrued benefits upon age 52 with 25 years of credited service or age 55 with ten
years of credited service.

Annual Money-Weighted Rate of Return
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024, the annual money-weighted rate of return, net of

investment expense on Plan investments was 6.62%. The money-weighted rate of return expresses
investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually

invested.
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Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3: RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)
Pension Plan (Continued)

Net Pension Asset

The following schedule displays the components of the net pension asset as of the Town’s
measurement date of September 30, 2024.

Increase (Decrease)

Total Plan
Pension Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position (Asset)
(a) (b) (a) - (b)
Balance at October 1, 2023 S 2,114,402 S 2,288,052 S (173,650)
Changes for the year:
Service cost 76,010 - 76,010
Interest 142,866 - 142,866
Difference between expected and actual experience 41,173 - 41,173
Contributions - Employee - 41,816 (41,816)
Net investment income - 800,189 (800,189)
Benefit payments, including
refunds of employee contributions (67,288) (67,288) -
Administrative expense - (13,814) 13,814
Net changes 192,761 760,903 (568,142)
Balance at September 30, 2024 S 2,307,163 S 3,048,955 S (741,792)
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability at September 30, 2024 132.15%

Actuarial Assumptions

The following is a summary of actuarial assumptions used in the latest actuarial valuation:

Valuation date October 1, 2021

Actuarial method and assumptions:

Method Entry Age Normal Cost Method
Investment rate of return 6.50%
Discount Rate 6.50%
Inflation rate 2.50%
Projected salary increases 5.00%
Mortality tables RP 2000 Table - Sex Distinct
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Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3: RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)
Pension Plan (Continued)
Investments

The long-term expected rate of return on Plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net
of Plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the Plan's target
asset allocation as of September 30, 2024 are summarized in the following table:

Target Long-Term Expected Real Rate of
Asset Class Allocation Return
Equities 33.60% 6.04%
Fixed income 63.20% 0.97%
Cash 3.20% 0.10%
Total 100.00%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension asset was 6.5%. The projection of cash flows
used to determine this discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the
current contribution rate and that sponsor contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference
between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those
assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return
on Plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine total
pension liability.

The following presents the net pension asset calculated using the discount rate of 6.5% as well as
what it would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower (5.5%) and 1% higher
(7.5%) than the current rate:

1 % Decrease Current Discount Rate 1 % Increase
(5.5%) (6.5%) (7.5%)
Net pension (asset) S (455,508) S (741,792) S (981,553)
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Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3: RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)
Pension Expense and Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources Related to Pension
For the year ended September 30, 2024, the Town recognized a pension expense of $(50,825). At

September 30, 2024, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience S 51,395 §$ 27,200
Changes of assumptions - -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on plan investments - 425,859
Total S 51,395 $ 453,059

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended September 30:

2025 S5 (89,859)
2026 (54,412)
2027 (126,843)
2028 (130,550)
Total 3 (401,664)

Note 4: INTERFUND BALANCES

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from interfund goods and services provided,
reimbursements of expenditures, and working capital loans. The following is a summary of interfund
receivables and payables at September 30, 2024:

Fund Receivable Payable

General Fund S 2,542,555 S 318,277
CRA - 7,690
Water and Sewer Fund - 4,236,360
Solid Waste Fund 912,882 -
Stormwater Fund 1,106,890 -
Total S 4,562,327 S 4,562,327
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Town of Eatonville, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 4: INTERFUND BALANCES (Continued)

Transfers for the year ended September 30, 2024:

Transfers in:

Community
Water and Redevelopment
Sewer Agency Total
Transfers out:
General Fund S 55,000 S - S 55,000

Note 5: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Town was awarded a grant of $5,986,105 from CDBG-MIT for Water System Hardening and
Resiliency Improvement. This project addresses the poor condition and performance of the existing
water systems through system-wide improvements.

The Town was awarded a grant of $2,000,000 from U. S. Dept of Housing and Urban Development
(Economic Development Initiative Community Project Funding). This project is to proceed with the
purchases of blighted land restoration, economic development and affordable housing.

The Town was awarded a grant of $665,000 from EPA Community Grant for infrastructure new
Vereen Lift Station/Quadrant Rehabilitation project

The Town was awarded a grant of $8,300,000 from Orange County CDBG Disaster Relief. These funds
will prevent flooding by improving our stormwater and our park will get a massive makeover, bringing
modern amenities and much-needed upgrades.
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget to Actual - General Fund

Variances
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive/
For the year ended September 30, 2024 Original Final  Actual Amounts (Negative)
Revenue
Ad valorem taxes 2,165,084 S 2,165,084 $ 2,229,318 64,234
Utility taxes 622,563 622,563 730,367 107,804
Franchise fees 430,000 430,000 462,344 32,344
Sales tax 380,000 380,000 449,508 69,508
Intergovernmental revenues 145,900 145,900 192,425 46,525
Licenses and permits 336,365 336,365 186,560 (149,805)
Charges for services 190,165 190,165 117,064 (73,101)
Fines and forfeitures 15,700 15,700 6,852 (8,848)
Interest income 200 200 45,660 45,460
Rental and other income 172,734 172,734 256,257 83,523
Total revenues 4,458,711 4,458,711 4,676,355 217,644
Expenditures
General government 2,235,569 2,235,569 2,323,645 (88,076)
Public safety 2,200,006 2,200,006 2,112,069 87,937
Physical environment 299,391 299,391 421,680 (122,289)
Economic environment 8,446 8,446 8,176 270
Human services 17,655 17,655 500 17,155
Culture/recreation 92,776 92,776 56,079 36,697
Capital outlay 130,000 130,000 669,606 (539,606)
Debt service:
Principal 59,500 59,500 85,109 (25,609)
Interest 34,500 34,500 17,775 16,725
Total expenditures 5,077,843 5,077,843 5,694,639 (616,796)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (619,132) (619,132) (1,018,284) 834,440
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Lease proceeds - - 131,044 (131,044)
Insurance recovery - - 238,267 (238,267)
Transfers out - - (55,000) 55,000
Total other financing sources (uses) - - 314,311 (183,267)
Net change in fund balances (619,132) (619,132) (703,973) 651,173
Fund balance, beginning of year 4,262,749 4,262,749 4,262,749 -
Fund balance, end of year 3,643,617 S 3,643,617 S 3,558,776 651,173
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Town of Eatonville, Florida
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget to Actual - CRA Fund

Variances
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive/
For the year ended September 30, 2024 Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
Revenue
Ad valorem taxes 350,000 S 350,000 $ 350,500 500
Interest 1,000 1,000 27,984 26,984
Intergovernmental - - 250,000 250,000
Miscellaneous income - - 4,910 4,910
Total revenues 351,000 351,000 633,394 282,394
Expenditures
General government 274,000 274,000 193,281 80,719
Culture/recreation 7,000 7,000 12,476 (5,476)
Capital outlay - - 15,875 (15,875)
Total expenditures 281,000 281,000 221,632 59,368
Net change in fund balance 70,000 70,000 411,762 341,762
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,050,828 1,050,828 1,050,828 -
Fund balance, end of year 1,120,828 S 1,120,828 $ 1,462,590 341,762
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Town of Eatonville, Florida

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Asset and Related Ratios

Police Officers’ Pension Fund

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Total Pension Liability
Service cost S 76,010 S 83,513 S 78,416 S 77,649 S 82,509 S 78,742 S 70,718 S 71,173 S 71,173 S 66,517
Interest 142,866 130,139 119,374 113,461 96,643 89,594 94,557 85,329 75,091 65,507
Differences between expected
and actual experience 41,173 - (70,151) 105,293 - 47,668 (270,949) - - 7,014
Changes of assumptions - - - - (37,585) 56,088 62,221 - - -
Benefit payments, including refunds of
employee contributions (67,288) (35,752) (38,792) (22,712) (19,003) (33,112) (48,446) - - (6,670)
Net change in total pension liability 192,761 177,900 88,847 273,691 122,564 238,980 (91,899) 156,502 146,264 128,258
Total pension liability, beginning 2,114,402 1,936,502 1,847,655 1,573,964 1,451,400 1,212,420 1,304,319 1,147,817 1,001,553 740,927
Total pension liability, ending (a) $ 2,307,163 S 2,114,402 S 1,936,502 S 1,847,655 S 1,573,964 $ 1,451,400 $ 1,212,420 S 1,304,319 S 1,147,817 $ 1,001,553
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - Employer S - S - S - S - S 16,839 S 15,000 S 15,000 S 9,000 S - S -
Contributions - State - 57,066 18,876 - - 17,160 14,803 13,340 18,484 10,398
Contributions - Employee 41,816 31,803 32,681 29,628 30,675 31,598 29,461 28,405 28,010 28,874
Net investment income 800,189 161,693 (262,910) 402,281 (20,267) 96,006 106,241 151,725 138,286 23,586
Benefit payments, including refunds of
employee contributions (67,288) (35,752) (38,792) (22,712) (19,003) (33,112) (48,446) - - (6,670)
Administrative expense (13,814) (12,283) (17,900) (9,900) (14,660) (24,694) (25,168) (15,150) (9,900) (14,370)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 760,903 202,527 (268,045) 399,297 (6,416) 101,958 91,891 187,320 174,880 41,818
Plan fiduciary net position, beginning 2,288,052 2,085,525 2,353,570 1,954,273 1,960,689 1,858,731 1,766,840 1,579,520 1,404,640 1,362,822
Plan fiduciary net position, ending (b) 3,048,955 2,288,052 2,085,525 2,353,570 1,954,273 1,960,689 1,858,731 1,766,840 1,579,520 1,404,640
Net pension (asset) - ending (a) - (b) S (741,792) S (173,650) S (149,023) S (505,915) S (380,309) S (509,289) S (646,311) S (462,521) S (431,703) S (403,087)
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of
the total pension liability 132.15% 108.21% 107.70% 127.38% 124.16% 135.09% 153.31% 135.46% 137.61% 140.25%
Covered payroll S 836,325 S 636,060 S 653,620 S 592,560 S 613,500 S 631,956 S 589,220 S 568,100 S 560,200 S 577,474
Net pension asset as a percentage of
covered payroll (88.70%) (27.30%) (22.80%) (85.38%) (61.99%) (80.59%) (109.69%) (81.42%) (77.06%) (69.80%)
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Town of Eatonville, Florida
Schedule of Changes in Net Position Asset and Related Ratios (Continued)
Police Officers’ Pension Fund

NOTES TO SCHEDULE:

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of September 30th. The Town
implemented GASB Statement No. 68 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014.

Change of Assumptions:

For measurement date September 30, 2024, there were no changes to assumptions made in the
calculations presented above.

PRIOR YEAR NOTES TO SCHEDULE:

For measurement date September 30, 2018, as a result of Chapter 2015-157, Laws of Florida,
assumed rates of mortality have been changed to those used in the July 1, 2018 FRS valuation report.

For measurement date September 30, 2020, amounts reported as changes of assumptions resulted

from lowering the inflation rate from 3.0% to 2.5% and reducing the salary increase assumptions
from 5.5%-10% to 5.0%.
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Schedule of Contributions

Last 10 Fiscal Years

Contribution

Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Schedule of Contributions and Annual Money-Weighted Rate of Return
Police Officers’ Pension Fund

in Relation to Percentage
Actuarially Actuarially Contribution of Covered
Year Determined Required (Excess) Covered Payroll
Ended Contribution Contribution Deficiency Payroll Contributed
September 30 (a) (b) (a-b) (c) (b/c)
2024 - - -5 836,325 0.00%
2023 - 57,066 (57,066) 636,060 8.97%
2022 - 18,876 (18,876) 653,620 2.89%
2021 - - - 592,560 0.00%
2020 - 16,839 (16,839) 613,500 5.09%
2019 1,896 32,160 (30,264) 631,956 5.09%
2018 1,768 29,803 (28,035) 589,220 5.06%
2017 1,084 22,340 (21,256) 568,100 3.93%
2016 1,084 8,484 (7,400) 560,200 1.51%
2015 9,240 10,398 (1,158) 577,474 1.80%
Annual Money-
Year Weighted
Ended Rate of
September 30 Return
2024 6.62%
2023 4.23%
2022 3.62%
2021 8.11%
2020 (1.03%)
2019 5.19%
2018 9.50%
2017 9.50%
2016 9.72%
2015 1.72%
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Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Schedule of Revenues and Expenses Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)
Enterprise Fund — Water and Sewer Fund

Water and Sewer

Variance
Final Positive/

For the year ended September 30, 2024 Budget Actual (Negative)
Operating Revenues

Charges for services S 884,511 $§ 843,802 S (40,709)
Total operating revenues 884,511 843,802 (40,709)
Operating Expenses

Personnel services 303,634 328,260 (24,626)

Operating 1,184,624 794,603 390,021
Total operating expenses 1,488,258 1,122,863 365,395
Operating income (loss) (603,747) (279,061) 324,686
Non-operating revenues

Transfers - 55,000 (55,000)
Total non-operating revenues - 55,000 (55,000)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenses S (603,747) $ (224,061) S 269,686

Note: Depreciation expense of $396,239 is not budgeted and, therefore, is not included on this schedule.

-61 105




Section IV. Item #3.

Town of Eatonville, Florida
Schedule of Revenues and Expenses Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)
Enterprise Fund - Solid Waste Fund

Solid Waste
Variance
Final Positive/
For the year ended September 30, 2024 Budget Actual (Negative)
Operating Revenues
Charges for services S 396,000 $ 367,569 S (28,431)
Total operating revenues 396,000 367,569 (28,431)
Operating Expenses
Operating 396,000 432,422 (36,422)
Total operating expenses 396,000 432,422 (36,422)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenses S - S (64,853) $ (64,853)
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Town of Eatonville,

Section IV. Item #3.

Schedule of Revenues and Expenses Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)
Enterprise Fund — Stormwater Fund

Stormwater
Variance
Final Positive/
For the year ended September 30, 2024 Budget Actual (Negative)
Operating Revenues
Charges for services S 223,014 § 191,800 S (31,214)
Total operating revenues 223,014 191,800 (31,214)
Operating Expenses
Personnel services 140,278 118,390 21,888
Operating 81,736 33,373 48,363
Total operating expenses 222,014 151,763 70,251
Excess of revenues over expenses S 1,000 S 40,037 S 39,037

Note: Depreciation expense of $1,173 is not budgeted and, therefore, is not included on this schedule.
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® -
CARR Carr, Riggs & |
c R I RIGGS & 1031 West Morse Boulevard
INGRAM Suite 200

Winter Park, FL 32789

CARR, RIGGS & INGRAM, L.L.C. 407.644.7455

407.628.5277 (fax)
CRladv.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Council
Town of Eatonville, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the Town of Eatonville, Florida (the Town), as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the Town’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated DATE.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that have not been identified. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control,
described in the accompanying schedule of findings as item 2024-001 and 2024-003 that we consider
to be a material weakness.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards and which is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings as item 2024-002.

Town’s Response to Findings

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Town’s
response to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of
findings. The Town’s response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

CARR, RIGGS & INGRAM, L.L.C.

Orlando, Florida
DATE
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Town of Eatonville,

Section IV. Item #3.

Schedule of Findings

2024-001 Financial Reporting (Repeat material weakness finding)

Criteria: All transactions should be recorded in accordance with GAAP. The financial close process should
include evaluation, reconciliations and adjustments to ensure accrual of respective accounts.

Condition: Multiple transactions were not recorded consistently with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).

Cause of Condition: Transactions inconsistent with GAAP were recorded improperly due to lack of
oversight or insufficient knowledge. Transactions were not recorded appropriately as part of the financial
close and reconciliation process.

Effect of Condition: The Town’s financial statements were materially misstated prior to audit
adjustments. The following adjustments were made:

e 567,000 to correct accounts receivable allowance for bad debt and revenue-Enterprise

e $81,400 to correct unrecorded liabilities-Enterprise

e 5$396,000 to adjust depreciation on capital assets-Enterprise

e 5$179,652 to adjust capital assets out of expenses-Enterprise

e S$672,000 to correct expenditures and duplicate entries through cash from bank reconciliation
process-Enterprise

e $187,000 to record current reduction of deferred inflows and lease receivable of lessor lease balances
under GASB 87 implementation-General

e S5344,000 to properly account for the balances between the due to/from other funds-
General/Enterprise/CRA

Recommendations: We recommend the Finance Department ensure adjustments are made to reflect all
activity on the GAAP basis and all filings are timely made as part of the financial close process. We

recommend reconciliations be performed through accounts to ensure activity is properly recorded.

Views of Responsible Officials: See page 69-71 for management’s response to the finding.
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Town of Eatonville,

Section IV. Item #3.

Schedule of Findings

2024-002 Debt Covenant Compliance (Repeat compliance finding)

Criteria: The Town’s State Revolving Fund Loan (SRF) agreements require the Town maintain rates and
charges for services furnished by the water and sewer systems, which will be sufficient to provide pledged
revenues equal to or exceeding 1.15 times the sum of the Town’s semiannual loan payments due in such
fiscal year. Pledged revenues are derived from the operation of the water and sewer systems after
payment of the operation and maintenance expenses of the system.

Condition: The Town did not meet the pledged revenue coverage covenant required by its SRF loan
agreements.

Cause of Condition: The Town has not maintained sufficient water and sewer rates to cover the costs of
operating the water and sewer systems.

Effect of Condition: Not meeting compliance requirements is an event of default on the loan, which
provides certain remedies allowed to the lender in the loan agreement. Among such remedies are calling
the loan, increasing the financing rate, intercepting delinquent amounts from unobligated funds due to
the Town through the State, or applying for a court to appoint a receiver to manage the water and sewer
systems, including setting rates, collecting revenues and applying those revenues to the loan balance.

Recommendations: We recommend that a rate study be completed and implemented to increase
revenue generated from water and sewer charges for services to ensure the pledged revenue coverage

covenant is met.

Views of Responsible Officials: See pages 69-71 for management’s response to the finding.
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Town of Eatonville,

Section IV. Item #3.

Schedule of Findings

2024-003 Management oversight of bank reconciliation and revenue

Criteria: The financial close process should include evaluation, reconciliations and adjustments to ensure
accurate reporting with management oversight of processes and controls.

Condition: Deposits were not properly recorded in appropriate fund bank accounts and bank
reconciliations were not completed accurately.

Cause of Condition: Cash deposits for charges for services were deposited to incorrect bank accounts.
Bank accounts were unable to be reconciled and caused large unreconciled differences.

Effect of Condition: The Town’s financial statements were materially misstated prior to audit adjustments
in the amount of $672,000. Deposits were made to incorrect bank accounts and the monthly bank
reconciliation process showed large unreconciled balances that were not further looked into.

Recommendations: We recommend management put processes in place to ensure management
oversight of internal controls relating to deposits and reconciliations within bank accounts. Management

should review reconciliations to ensure cash is accurately reported in each fund.

Views of Responsible Officials: See page 69-71 for management’s response to the finding.
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Town of Eatonville,

Management’s Corrective Action Plan

Management’s Corrective Action Plan

TowN oF EATONVILLE

“THE Coesr Brace Ivcorporsten Musocreacmy v Asesica™

2024-001 Fimancial Reporting {Repeat material weakness finding)

Criteria: All ransactions should be recorded in sccordance with GAaAP, The Nnancial close process should include
evaluation, recanciliations and adjustments 1 ensure acersal of respective accounts,

Conditlon: Multiple rransactions were not recorded consistently with accounting principles generally accepied in
the United States of America (GAAF).

Cause of Condition: Transactiens inconsistent with GAAP were recorded impeogerly due o lack of oversight or
insufficient knowledpe. Transactions were not recorded appropriately as part of the financial close and reconciliation
process,

Effect of Conmdition: The Town s financial statements were materially misstated prior to audit adjustmens. The
following adjustments were miad e:

= E467.000 to correct accounds receivable allowance for bad debt and revenue-Enderprise

= 581,400 tor correct unrecorded liabilities-Enterprise

« 3306000 10 el just depresiation on capital nssets-Enterprise

* F1TH.652 to adjust capital ssets out of expenses-Enterprise

= 36T MK bo correct expenditures and duplicate entries through cash from bank reconciliation process-Enterprise

* 31870040 to record current reduction of deferred inflows and bease receivable of lessor bease balances under GASH
87 implementztion=Cieneral

= S5, 000 vo progerly acoount for the balances betwesn the due todfrom other funds Greneral/Enterprise/CRA

Recommendations: We recommend the Finance Department ensure ad justments are made 1o reflect all activity on
the GAAP basis and all filings are tmely made as part of the financial close process, We recommend reconciliations
bz performed through accounts 0 ensure activily is properly recorded.

Managemeni Response:

The Town acknowwledges the material adjustments kdentified during the audit related w the improper recarding of
ransactions inconsistent with secounting principles geneeally accepied in the United States of America (GAAP),
To address these issues and prevent recurrence, the Town has taken the following comestive actions:

1. Staff Tralning and Developmeni:
The Finance Depariment staff have begun receiving additional training in GAAP principles, governmental
accounting standards {including GASE B7 implementation), and yvear-end financial reporting requirements,
Continued professional development will he prioritized moving Forward,

2. Enhanced Owversight and Review:
The Town has srengthened imernal oversight by assigning review responsibilities o senior finance staff
prior w submission of year-end financial daa for audit, Additienally, the Town is exploring external
technical support optiens during year-end closing 10 ensure complex tansactions are accounted for
properly.

3 Systematle Reconciliaiinns:
Routine reconciliations. incleding for cash, receivables, liabilities, interfund transsctions, and capital asssts,
have been scheduled and documented 1o ensure transsctions are properly recorded throughout the vear,

However, the Town would like to clanfy that the following sdjustments were made by the auditors during the audi
process: $3%6,000 1 adpust depreciation on capital assets {Enferprise Fund), $179,652 10 adjust capital assets out of
expenses (Enterprge Fund), 5T87,000 to record the current reduction of deferred inflows and lease receivable
balances under GASE 87 implementation (General Fund1The Town understands that these adjusiments were
necessary o present sccurate financial slatemnents, Howewver, if these entries are deemed to require formal journal
entries, we will take the appropriaie sieps te record them as necessary in future periods.

Town HaLL # 307 E. KENNEDY BOULEVARD *+ EaToNVILLE, FLORDA 32751
PHONE (407) 523-8900 pulaa7) 6235000
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Town of Eatonville, H
Management’s Corrective Action Plan

Management’s Corrective Action Plan (Continued)

TownN oF EATONVILLE

“Tre Ooesr Brack Ivcorroraren Muscipanmy Iy America”™

2024-002 Debi Covenant Comp lance (Repeat compliance finding)

Criteria: The Town's Staie Bevalving Fund Loan (SRF} agreements require the Town maintain rates and changes
for services furnished by the water and sewer systems, which will be sufficient 1o provide pledged revenues equal 1o
of exceeding .15 times the sum of the Tewn's semiannual loan payments due in such fiscal vear. Pledged revenues
arc derived from the operation of the water and sewer systems afier payment of the operation and maintenance
expenses of the system.

Conddltlon: The Town did not meet the pledged revenue coverage covenant required by its SRF loan agreements,

Cause of Condition: The Town has oot maimaived sufficien water and sewer rates w cover the costs of operating
the water and sewer systems.

Effect of Condition: Mot meeting compliance requirements is an event of default on the loan, which provides
cernin remedies allowed to the lender in the loan agreement. Among such remedies are calling the loan, increasing
ihe financing rate, infercepting delinguent amounts from unobligated funds due to the Town through the Stade, or
applying for a court o appoint 8 receiver to manage the waier and sewer systems, including seitmg rates, collecting
revenues and applying thoss revenues to the loon balance.

Recommendations: We recommend that o rate study be complebed and implemented fo increase revenue genermted
from water amd sewer charges for services to ensure the pledged revenue coverage covenant is met.

fManagement Response:

To address this, the Town fook several cormeciive actions, On September 3, 2024, the Town Council adopied
Riselution #2024-24 and Resolation #2024-2%, which updated the Town's Asset Management and Fiscal
Sustainability Plam, including planz for Water System Improvements and Wastewater Litility System

Im provements, These updates were key steps toward ensuring long-term infrastructure planning and financial
stnbility.

[:Iurl'na_ FY 2024, Town staff warked with the Florida Burml Water Associntian b :l:.mpl-:h: H d:mnpr:h:m.iue Water
and Wastewater Rate Study, The previous study hisd been conducted on Aogust 5, 2005, Although an updisted rate
recommendation was initially presented, it was nol adopted by the Town Council at that teme, which contributed to
the Town's noncompliance with the pledued revenue coverages covenant.

The new Water amnd Wastewater Fate Study was completed im October 2024, Following public hearings in
Movember and December 2024, ghe new rate structure was adopted on December 3, 2024, and the first utility bills
reflecting the new rabes were issued in Fﬂhl'llll'rll' 2025, This new rafe strachure i;'prq-j:l:l;:d b MCTEnse revenues
sulficiently o fund necessary capital improvements, cover operational costs, and ensure apprapriate levels of
service. As a resull, the Town expects 1o folbow SRF loan covenants moving forward,

Town Hatl « 307 E. KenveDy BOULEVARD * EATONVILLE, FLORIDA 32751
PuonE (407) 623-8900papSapfd0T) 6275000
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Town of Eatonville,

Management’s Corrective Action Plan

Management’s Corrective Action Plan (Continued)

Town orF EATONVILLE

“TuE OLeest Brack Ivcorroraren Mowicicrmy Iv Averca™

2024-03 Management oversight of bank reconcillation and revenue

Criteriaz The financinl close process should include evaluation, reconciliations and adjustments 10 ensure accurabe
reporting with management owversight of processes and controls.

Condition: Deposits were not properly recorded in appropriate fund bank accounts and bank reconciliations were
nod completed accurntely.

Cause of Condition: Cash deposits for charges for services were deposited to incormect bank sccounts. Bank
accounts were unahle to be recon ciled and caused larpe unreconciled differences

Effect of Condifion: The Town's financial statements were materially misstabed prior to audii adjusimenis in the
amaunt of 367240, Deposits were made 1o incorrect bank accounts and the menthly bank reconciliation process
showed large unreconciled balanoes that were not further looked intoe

HRecomemendations: We recemm end management put processes in place 1o ensure manogement oversight of infernal
contrels relating to deposit ard reconciliations within bank accounts, Management should review reconcilintions to
ensurg cash is accurately reporbed in sach fund.

Management Response:

As part of swilching over o our new financial software system, we ran inio semse issues with how utiliny billing
payments were being recorded. Specifically, when customers made payments thar ingluded both Stormwater and
Water & Sewer charges, we were trying 1o split those payments between the tawe separte cash aceaunts far each
fumd,

Additionally, bank reconciliations during this transition period were not completed aceurately Tor Stosmwater and
Water & Sewer, which contributed to discrepancies beoween the bank accounts and the general ledger. As a resulr,
the cash mecounts for these funds became out of balance,

We acknowledpe the issue and are taking all necessary steps 10 eorrect past discrepancies and ensure socuraks
finamcial managenient moving forward. With updated procedures, praper system configuration, and staff training,
we are confident this issue will be resolved and will not recur.

I Staffwraining has been implemented 1o ensure sccurate processing of split deposits in the new financial
aysten,

2. The finance team is also working with the software vendor 10 ensure proper configuration of fund-specific
cash account posting is goine forward,

The reconciliation process has been updated 10 include sddinional intemal controls and verification steps to
PrCVENT recurrence.

Lad

Town HarL + 307 E. KEnneDy Boupssass s EaTonyiee Broens 32751
Prone (407) 623-8000 | Fax (2 ) 620 915
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1031 West Morse Boulevard
Suite 200
Winter Park, FL 32789

CARR®
RIGGS &
INGRAM

CARR, RIGGS & INGRAM, L.L.C.

407.644.7455
407.628.5277 (fax)
CRladv.com

MANAGEMENT LETTER REQUIRED BY
CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Council
Town of Eatonville, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of the Town of Eatonville, Florida (the Town) as of and
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024, and have issued our report thereon dated
September 18, 2024.

Auditor’s Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the
Auditor General.

Other Reporting Requirements

We have issued our Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
and Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards and Independent Accountants’ Report on an
examination conducted in accordance with AICPA Professional Standards, AT-C Section 315,
regarding compliance requirements in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor
General. Disclosures in those reports and schedule, which are dated September 18, 2024, should be
considered in conjunction with this management letter.

Prior Audit Findings

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding
annual financial audit report. Audit findings 2024-001 and 2024-002 are repeat findings from the
preceding two annual financial audit reports.

Tabulation of Uncorrected Audit Findings

Current Year

2023-2022 FY

2022-2021 FY

Finding # Finding # Finding #
2024-001 2023-001 2022-001
2024-002 2023-002 2022-002
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Official Title and Legal Authority

Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and
legal authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be
disclosed in this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
The legal authority of the Town of Eatonville, Florida and its component unit are disclosed in
the footnotes.

Financial Condition and Management

Section 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate
procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether or not the Town has met
one of more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the
specific conditions met. In connection with our audit, we determined that the Town did not meet any
of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial
condition assessment procedures. It is management’s responsibility to monitor the Town’s financial
condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by
management and the review of financial information provided by same.

Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any
recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we recommend
management establish a plan to improve the deficit in unrestricted net position through increase
revenue or reduction of expenses.

Special Information

Section 10.554(1)(i)5.c., Rules of the Auditor General, requires, if appropriate, that we
communicate the failure of a special district that is a component unit of a county, municipality, or
special district, to provide the financial information necessary for proper reporting of the component
unit within the audited financial statements of the county, municipality, or special district in
accordance with Section 218.39(3)(b), Florida Statutes. In connection with our audit, we did not note
any special district component units that failed to provide the necessary information for proper
reporting in accordance with Section 218.39(3)(b), Florida Statutes.

Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) Programs (Unaudited)

As required by Section 10.554(1)(i)6.a., Rules of the Auditor General, the Town did not operate a
PACE program pursuant to Section 163.081 or Section 163.082, Florida Statutes, within the Town's
geographical boundaries during the fiscal year under audit.

Additional Matters

Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance
with provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have
occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but warrants the
attention of those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not note any such
findings.
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Purpose of this Letter

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida
Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, and applicable management, and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

CARR, RIGGS & INGRAM, L.L.C.

Orlando, Florida
DATE
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CARR Carr, Riggs & |
c R I RIGGS & 1031 West Morse Boulevard
INGRAM Suite 200

Winter Park, FL 32789

CARR, RIGGS & INGRAM, L.L.C. 407.644.7455

407.628.5277 (fax)
CRladv.com

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH LOCAL
GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT POLICIES

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Council
Town of Eatonville, Florida

We have examined the Town of Eatonville, Florida’s (the Town) compliance with the requirements of
Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, Local Government Investment Policies, during the year ended
September 30, 2024. Management of the Town is responsible for the Town’s compliance with the
specified requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Town’s compliance with
the specified requirements based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the AICPA.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the examination to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the Town complied, in all material respects, with the specified requirements
referenced above. An examination involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about
whether the Town complied with the specified requirements. The nature, timing, and extent of the
procedures selected depend on our judgment, including an assessment of the risks of material
noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the evidence obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We are required to be independent and to meet our ethical responsibilities in accordance with
relevant ethical requirements relating to the examination engagement.

Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the Town’s compliance with specified
requirements.

In our opinion, the Town complied, in all material respects, with the requirements of Section 218.415,
Florida Statutes, Local Government Investment Policies, for the year ended September 30, 2024.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Town’s Council, management and

the State of Florida Auditor General and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

Orlando, Florida
DATE
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HISTORIC TOWN OF EATONVILLE,
FLORIDA

TOWN COUNCIL WORKSHOP

MAY 06, 2025, AT 6:30 PM
Cover Sheet

**NOTE** Please do not change the formatting of this document (font style, size, paragraph spacing etc.)

ITEMTITLE:

Discussion of the Contract For Engineering Services With CPH For The
Water Plant And Water Storage Tank (Administration / Public Works)

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION:

PROCLAMATIONS,
AWARDS, AND
PRESENTATIONS

Department: ADMINISTRATION / PUBLIC WORKS

INTRODUCTIONS

CONSENT AGENDA

COUNCIL
DISCUSSION

YES

ADMINISTRATIVE

Exhibits:

e Contract for Engineering Services CDBG-MIT Grant for
water hardening

REQUEST: Discussion of the Contract for CPH for the Engineering services for the Water Plant and

Water Storage Tank.

SUMMARY:: The Town selected CPH for the engineering services for the CDBG MIT Grant for $5.9
Million dollars. This package is the contract for review and approval

RECOMMENDATION: Recommend discussion of the Contract for CPH for the Engineering services

for the Water Plant and Water Storage Tank.

FISCAL & EFFICIENCY DATA: N/A
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March 24, 2025

Katrina Gibson

Finance Director

Town of Eatonville

307 E. Kennedy
Eatonville, Florida 32751

RE: Proposal for CBDG-MIT Grant No. MT128
Lake Bell Water Treatment Plant Engineering Services
CPH Job No. 201.2400998

Dear Ms. Gibson,

CPH Consulting, LLC is pleased to submit this scope of work to provide professional services to
prepare preliminary and final design documents, provide permitting assistance, CBDG-MIT Grant
Fund assistance, and other engineering, architectural, subconsultant, and survey related services
to constructing the proposed Lake Bell Water Treatment Plant and connecting to the water main

on Kennedy Blvd for the Town of Eatonville.

This Scope of Work is being submitted in accordance with our response to Request for
Qualifications No. 24-001 Federally Funded CDBG-MIT Grant No. MT128, dated August 5, 2024,
by and between the Town of Eatonville (TOWN) and the firm of CPH Consulting, LLC
(CONSULTANT). In response to Request for Qualifications (RFQ) No. 2024-001, CPH was
selected pursuant to requirements set forth in the Consultants’ Competitive Negotiations Act
(CCNA), chapter 287, Florida Statutes as required by the federally funded grant.

Exhibit A presents a detailed scope of services. CONSULTANT proposes to perform the services

for a lump sum fee of $1,073,013.00. Exhibit B presents the labor-hour cost breakdown table.

In addition, a revised Statement of Indemnification (Exhibit C) has been included to meet the
intent of F.S. 725.08.

If the Town is in agreement with our proposal and revisions to the Statement of Indemnification,
then please have the Town Mayor sign the attached signature page for authorization to proceed
with the described work. As always, CPH appreciates this opportunity to provide our services to

the Town.

Sincerely,
CPH Consulting, LLC

]

—

N RIS T—

Scott A. Breitenstein, P.E.
Division Manager — Treatment Facilities

1|Page
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ALL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS ARE HEREBY
INCORPORATED HEREIN.

IN THE EVENT THAT THE LANGUAGE OF THIS PROPOSAL IS CONSTRUED TO BE IN
CONFLICT WITH THE LANGUAGE IN THE REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS, THE
LANGUAGE OF THE REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS SHALL CONTROL.

Made and executed by and between the TOWN and the CPH on this EXECUTED date
HEREIN.

Town:

TOWN OF EATONVILLE, a Florida
municipal corporation

By:

Angie Gardner
Title: Mayor

DATE:

Consultant:

CPH Consulting, LLC,
6 2

II:.. o T.. ,__#":E'-fr{- 4 {z";_
s é’ffﬁ, B A

By:
Scott A. Breitenstein, P.E.
Title: Division Manager — Treatment Facilities

2|Page
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EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

SCOPE OF WORK - Eatonville CBDG-MIT Grant WTP Improvements (24-Mar-2025).docx
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Section IV. Item #4. a
TOWN OF EATONVILLE

LAKE BELL WATER TREATMENT PLANT ENGINEERING SERVICES
SCOPE OF SERVICES
EXHIBIT “A”

PROJECT BACKGROUND

This scope of work is to provide professional services to prepare preliminary and final design
documents, provide permitting assistance, CBDG-MIT Grant Fund assistance, and other
engineering, architectural, subconsultant, and survey related services to constructing the
proposed Lake Bell Water Treatment Plant and connecting to the water main on Kennedy Blvd

for the Town of Eatonville.

Engineering Services are being funded by the FY 2023 State of Florida Department of Economic
Opportunity (DEO) federally funded Community Development Block Grant Mitigation Program
(CDBG-MIT) in the General Infrastructure Program (GIP) category ($5.9-Mil).

This Scope of Work is being submitted in accordance with our response to Request for
Qualifications No. 24-001 Federally Funded CDBG-MIT Grant No. MT128, dated August 5, 2024,
by and between the Town of Eatonville (TOWN) and the firm of CPH Consulting, LLC
(CONSULTANT). In response to Request for Qualifications (RFQ) No. 2024-001, CPH was
selected pursuant to requirements set forth in the Consultants’ Competitive Negotiations Act

(CCNA), chapter 287, Florida Statutes as required by the federally funded grant.
PURPOSE

The purpose of this project is to construct the proposed Lake Bell WTP to support existing and
future potable water demands within the Town’s service area. Proposed design documents will

include plans and technical specifications for the following:

1. Site plans and technical specifications to accommodate Equip and Connection of two (2)
existing Upper Floridan Aquifer (UFA) wells with Variable Frequency Drive (VFD) motors
with provisions to construct, equip and connect one (1) future Lower Floridan Aquifer (LFA)

well.
2. Plans and technical specifications for a new 0.5-MG Ground Storage Tank (GST).

3. Plans and technical specifications a new Operations Building (approximately 50’ x 70’) to

include:

4|1Page
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a. High service pump room for up to four (4) pumps with roll up garage doors, storage

for spare pumps and motor with a manual hoist system (30’ x 60’)
b. Contained and ventilated chemical storage area (20’ x 30’)
c. Electrical Room (20’ x 20’)
d. Secure Instrumentation and Control (1&C) Room (10’ x 10’)
e. Office and Storage Space (10’ x 30°)
f. Wet Chemistry/ Break Room (10’ x 10’)
g. Restroom (one (1) unisex restroom) (10’x 10’)

h. Mini grinder pump station to serve the operations building for wastewater disposal

of domestic wastewater to nearby manhole

4. Plans and technical specifications for a new Auxiliary Power 250 KW Generator with Fuel

Tank with 3 days of storage capacity to serve Proposed Lake Bell WTP.
5. Plans and technical Specifications to extend 16-inch finished potable water line
approximately 2,000 linear feet (LF) from Proposed Lake Bell WTP to Kennedy Blivd .
The intent of this scope of work is to define our engineering and architectural services which will
include the following:
» Project Definition (10% Conceptual Design)
» Preliminary Ecological Assessment (CPH Consulting, LLC)
Topographic Survey (CPH Consulting, LLC)
Subsurface Survey (ECHO UES, Inc.)
Geotechnical Investigations (NADIC Engineering Services, Inc. & Tierra Inc.)
Architectural Support Services (Rhodes & Brito Architects)
Preliminary Design Report (30% Design)
Design Documents (60%, 90% & 100% Plans and Technical Specifications)
Permitting Assistance

Bidding Assistance

vV VYV VYV VYV V¥V V¥V V VYV V

Construction Administration (not included at this time)
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A. SCOPE OF SERVICES

Task 1 —Project Setup, Kick-Off Meeting, and Due Diligence Support Services
1.1 Set-up project and prepare a Project Work Plan with tentative schedule.

1.2 Prepare for and Conduct a Kick-Off Meeting with the TOWN to identify roles, set a
tentative schedule, review TOWN requirements, and request available data.
Coordinate with CBDG-MIT Program Manager to prepare Kick-Off Meeting Minutes
for TOWN record.

1.3 Subcontract Electrical Design Associates (EDA), an M/WBE firm, to provide Electrical
and Instrumentation plans as well as the associated technical specifications (Refer to

Attachment A for definition of actual services to be performed).

14 Coordinate and conduct Preliminary Ecological Assessment and Wetland Delineation

(Refer to Attachment B for definition of actual services to be performed).

1.5 Coordinate and conduct Topographic and Boundary Survey (Refer to Attachment C
for definition of actual services to be performed). Survey will be conducted in
compliance with the Standards of Practice of Surveying and Mapping of the State of
Florida.

1.6 Subcontract ECHO Utility Engineering & Survey, Inc., an M/WBE firm, to provide
Subsurface Utility Location on the proposed Lake Bell WTP site (Refer to Attachment
D for definition of actual services to be performed). Up to five (5) utility verification test
holes are included. CONSULTANT has included one (1) site visit to coordinate and

meet with ECHO to identify locations of the utility verification test holes.

1.7 Subcontract NADIC Engineering Services, Inc., an M/WBE firm, to perform
geotechnical exploration at the proposed Lake Bell WTP location (Refer to
Attachment E for definition of actual services to be performed). The geotechnical
evaluation will provide geotechnical recommendations for site civil preparation,
building foundation, stormwater pond design and roadway design. CONSULTANT
has included one (1) site visit to coordinate and meet with NADIC to establish and

stake locations of the geotechnical investigation borings.

1.8 Coordinate and conduct Landscaping and Irrigation Design Services (Refer to

Attachment F for definition of actual services to be performed).

6|]Page

SCOPE OF WORK - Eatonville CBDG-MIT Grant WTP Improvements (24-Mar-2025).docx 129




Section IV. Item #4. a

1.9 Subcontract Rhodes & Brito, an M/WBE firm, to perform Conceptual Architectural

Services and Guidance (Refer to Attachment G for definition of actual services to be

performed).

Task 2 — Project Definition Workshop (10% Conceptual Design)

21 Prepare for and conduct a Project Definiton Workshop with  TOWN Staff
(administration, engineering, operations, and maintenance) and CBDG-MIT Program

Manager.

2.2 Prepare 10% Project Definition Conceptual Design Technical Memorandum
(Operations Building Floor Plan, Site Plan Layout and Yard Piping) based on Project
Definition Workshop for TOWN and CBDG-MIT Program Manager review and
comment. System data will be collected and compiled to conduct a risk-based (value
engineered) assessment. Up to three (3) Operations Building Floor Plans and Site

Plan Layout options will be explored.
2.3 Prepare Class 4 Conceptual Cost Estimate (40% Contingency).

24 Prepare for and conduct 10% Project Definition Conceptual Design Technical
Memorandum Meeting with TOWN staff and CBDG-MIT Program Manager to review

comments.
Task 3 — Preliminary Basis of Design Report (30% Design)

3.1 Conduct site visit and evaluate existing information to identify proposed locations of
new structures. A TOWN representative will meet at existing WTP No. 1 site and
proposed Lake Bell WTP site with CONSULTANT’s Project Manager, Civil Engineer-
of-Record, Architect-of-Record, Landscape Architect and Electrical Engineer-of-
Record to discuss the proposed Lake Bell WTP site plan constraints relative to site
access and aesthetics. Prepare meeting minutes to document TOWN selected site

layout features to be included in the design documents.

3.2 Electrical sub-consultant will be responsible to coordinate with Duke Energy (Duke) to
provide a transformer power supply feed to the proposed Lake Bell WTP location.
EDA will also coordinate with Duke for location of the new transformer and power

meter.
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3.3 Prepare DRAFT Basis of Design Report (BODR) with a summary of key design

parameters for TOWN and CBDG-MIT Program Manager review and comment. The
BODR will identify the following:

a. Site/civil layout

b. Building architectural features
c. Structural features

d. Landscape features

e. Electrical power and instrumentation needs for proposed power supply and
demolition of WTP No. 1

f. Location of electrical components including City and power company facilities
g. Instrumentation operational controls for SCADA integration
Major equipment preferences
i. Permitting requirements
j. Ecological assessment

3.4 Prepare 30% Proposed Site Plan Layout, Major Elevations and Operations Building

Design Drawings for use in permitting.
3.5 Prepare Class 3 Budget Authorization Construction Cost Estimate (30% Contingency).

3.6 Prepare for and conduct 30% BODR submittal Review Meeting with TOWN and
CBDG-MIT Program Manager.

3.7 Prepare FINAL BODR based upon TOWN and CBDG-MIT Program Manager review

comments.

3.8 Conduct QA/QC review of deliverables.

Task 4 — 60% Submittal Project Design Documents

4.1 Prepare 60% Site Plan Layout, Major Elevations and Operations Building Design
Drawings for TOWN and CBDG-MIT Program Manager review and comment based
upon TOWN approved BODR. The 60% plans will be used for submittal to the TOWN
Planning Department for review, comment, and approval. At 60% design, EDA will
prepare process and instrumentation diagrams (P&IDs), single line diagrams, control
wiring riser diagrams, generator load calculations and system control and data
acquisition (SCADA) criteria. In addition, EDA will use the TOWN’s HMI infrastructure

8|Page

SCOPE OF WORK - Eatonville CBDG-MIT Grant WTP Improvements (24-Mar-2025).docx 131




Section IV. Item #4. a

to the extent possible to provide cost-effective solutions for monitoring and controlling

the proposed Lake Bell WTP operations.

4.2 Prepare 60% Technical Specifications. Technical Specifications for the project
manual are proposed to meet current TOWN engineering standards for design and

construction of facilities.
4.3 Prepare Class 2 Budget Control Construction Cost Estimate (20% Contingency).

4.4 Conduct 60% submittal Review Meeting with TOWN and CBDG-MIT Program

Manager.

4.5 Conduct QA/QC review of construction documents.

Task 5 — 90% Submittal Project Design Documents

51 Prepare 90% Site Plan Layout, Major Elevations, and Operations Building Design

Drawings for TOWN and Town’s CBDG-MIT Program Manager review and comment.

5.2 Prepare 90% Technical Specifications and bid form. Front-End Bidding General
Conditions, such as: Bid Advertisement; Contractual Conditions; and Contractual
Agreement Form will be provided by CBDG-MIT Program Manager to meet federal

grant requirements.
5.3 Update Class 2 Budget Control Construction Cost Estimate (20% Contingency).

5.4  Conduct 90% submittal Review Meeting with TOWN and CBDG-MIT Program

Manager.

5.5 Conduct QA/QC review of construction documents.

Task 6 — 100% Submittal Project Design Documents

6.1 Prepare 100% Site Plan Layout, Major Elevations, and Operations Building Design
Drawings for use in bidding per DEO review comments. The 100% Construction Plans

will be considered bid ready.

6.2 Prepare 100% Technical Specifications and Bid Form per DEO review comments. The

100% Technical Specifications will be considered bid ready.
6.3 Prepare Class 1 Probable Bid Cost Estimate (10% Contingency).
6.4 Conduct 100% submittal Review Meeting with TOWN to coordinate bidding services.

6.5 Conduct QA/QC review of construction documents.
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71 Conduct permit inquiry with Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP)

Task 7 — Permitting Assistance

to submit permit to Construct Public Water System (PWS) components. Respond to
up to one (1) request for additional information (RAI) from review/regulatory agency.
Permit fees to be paid by TOWN.

7.2 Conduct permit inquiry with St. Johns River Water Management District (SJIRWMD) to
submit a minor permit modification to modify existing wells. Respond to up to one (1)
request for additional information (RAI) from review/regulatory agency. Permit fees to
be paid by TOWN.

7.3 Conduct permit inquiry with FDEP to submit a Stormwater General Environmental
Resource Permit (ERP). Respond to up to one (1) request for additional information

(RAI) from review/regulatory agency. Permit fees to be paid by TOWN.

7.4 Conduct permit inquiry and submit signed and sealed plans for TOWN Planning and
Zoning permit review. Permit submittal will use 60% drawings. Assumes no plan

review fee for TOWN Planning Department.

7.5 Conduct permit inquiry with Orange County to identify coordination to install new diesel

storage tank and generator. Permit fees to be paid by TOWN.

7.6 Conduct Building Permit inquiry with TOWN Building Department. Inquiry conducted
will use 60% drawings. Assumes no Building Permit review fee for TOWN Building

Department.
Task 8 - Bidding Assistance

8.1 Prepare Bid Documents for the TOWN. Assist the TOWN in preparing the
advertisement for the project in appropriate publications by the TOWN and assist in

generating contractor interest in the project work.
8.2 Prepare for, coordinate, and attend a pre-bid conference for the project.

8.3 Prepare answers to questions by bidders and suppliers for up to one (1) addendum.
Additional addendums will be under a separate work authorization. No interpretations
of the Documents shall be made other than through issuance of Addenda to the
Documents, which will be developed to be provided to Bid Document holders.
Electrical subconsultant, EDA, will assist with responding to electrical or

instrumentation questions.
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8.4 Attend the bid opening and Town Council Meeting where the contract is awarded.

8.5 Tabulate bids, review agreement bonds, insurance -certifications, construction
schedules and other portions of the contract, and conduct reference checks on the
three (3) apparent lower bidders. CONSULTANT will provide the TOWN with a letter
establishing the Engineers Recommendation on the most qualified responsive and
responsible apparent low bidder in order to assist the TOWN in selecting the

contractor.

8.6 Prepare conformed documents for contractor use during the construction phase of the
Project.

8.7 Prepare for and attend the pre-construction meeting. Contractor will prepare a
construction schedule, pay application, site use plan, safety plan and list of sub-
contractors.

Task 9 - Construction Administration (not Included at this time)

CPH can provide limited, or full time, construction administration services for the Project when

requested by the TOWN. Scope to be provided once successful bidder selected.

B. SERVICES NOT INCLUDED

The following services are not included in the scope of services. When requested by TOWN,

any of the following services will be prepared under a separate scope of work for authorization.
1. Consumptive Use Permit Modification

Hydraulic Testing of existing wells

Upper Florida Aquifer (UFA) or Lower Floridan Aquifer (LFA) Well Design

Pilot Testing of advance treatment systems

Construction Administration Services ()

Full-Time Construction Engineering Inspection (CEl) Services

Design of security systems

© N o o b~ w0 DN

Design Services for Future Treatment Processes
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10. Front end contractual documents in compliance with federally funded projects (to be
provided by CBDG-MIT Program Manager)

9. Design of hardscaping or security walls

11. Start-up services and Training

12. Survey from Proposed Lake Bell WTP site to Kennedy Blvd (under a separate
scope)

13. Demolition plans for WTP 1

14. DWSRF Grant Funding Assistance (to be provided by DWSRF Program Manager)

C. SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY TOWN
1. Review submittal documents within two (2) weeks of delivery.

Provide access to the site

Pay Permit fees

2

3

4. DWSRF Coordination
5. CBDG-MIT Coordination
6

Negotiate Utility Easement Acquisitions
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The CONSULTANT agrees to perform the work outlined herein for a lump sum fee of

D. PROJECT COST

$1,073,013.00 inclusive of out-of-pocket expenses. Progress invoices will be submitted based

on the Engineer’s estimate of the percent of work complete at the time of invoicing.

Exhibit B presents a detailed breakdown of task items and associated fee, which outline the costs
for each task of the project. Fees for each of the tasks are based on Lump Sum. Table A

summarizes the fee for each Task.

TABLE A: Summary of Professional Services Fee

1 Project Setup, Kick-Off Meeting & Due $ 245,669 Lump Sum
Diligence Support

2 Project Definition Workshop (10% $ 84,490 Lump Sum

Conceptual Design)

3 Preliminary Basis of Design Report (30% $ 169,096 Lump Sum
Design)
4 60% Submittal Project Design Documents $ 192,278 Lump Sum
5 90% Submittal Project Design Documents $ 177,288 Lump Sum
6 100% Submittal Project Design Documents $ 139,022 Lump Sum
7 Permitting Assistance $ 35,820 Lump Sum
8 Bidding Assistance $ 29,350 Lump Sum
9 Construction Administration Not Included at = Lump Sum

this time

TOTAL $ 1,073,013 Lump Sum
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PROJECT TENTATIVE SCHEDULE
Project is anticipated to take 500 days from NTP (see Table B).

TABLE B: Tentative Project Schedule

0 Design Notice-to-Proceed (NTP) -- March 2025
1 Key Design Criteria Workshop 2 weeks after NTP April 2025
2 10% Conceptual Design 2 months May 2025
3 30% Basis of Design Report (BODR) 3 months August 2025
4 60% Design Documents 3 months November 2025
5 90% Design Documents 2 months January 2026
6 100% Design Documents 2 months March 2026
7 Bidding to Notice of Award (NOA) 4 months July 2026
TOTAL 16 months 500 days
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If you have any questions or need any further information, please feel free to contact us at (407)
425-0452. We look forward to working with TOWN on this project.

CLOSING

Sincerely,

CPH Consulting, LLC

Rolevto-M. GOV\M Scott A. Breintenstien

Roberto M. Gonzalez, P.E. Scott A. Breitenstein, P.E.
Senior Project Manager Division Manager — Treatment Facilities
ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment A: EDA - Proposal for Electrical and Instrumentation Design Services
Attachment B: CPH - Proposal for Ecological Services
Attachment C: CPH - Proposal for Topographic Survey Services
Attachment D: ECHO UES - Proposal for Subsurface Survey Services
Attachment E: NADIC - Proposal for Geotechnical Services at Bell WTP Site
Attachment F: CPH - Proposal for Landscape and irrigation Design Services
Attachment G: Rhodes & Brito — Proposal for Conceptual Architectural Services
Exhibit B: Task and Fee Estimate
END OF SECTION
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ATTACHMENT A
Electrical Design Associates (EDA)
Proposal for Electrical and Instrumentation Design Services
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Electrical Design Associates

January 16, 2025

Mr. Robbie Gonzalez, P.E.

CPH

1117 E. Robinson Street, Suite C
Orlando, Florida 32801

Re: Lake Bell WTP
Eatonville, Florida

Dear Mr. Gonzalez:

We are pleased to submit our proposal for electrical and control system engineering services for
the above project. The following serves to provide an overview of the engineering services
Electrical Design Associates, Inc. (EDA) intends to furnish on the above referenced project. Your
signature on this agreement will serve as your letter of intent and official notice to proceed with
the referenced work. Our scope of work will include the electrical and instrumentation design for
the following:

Scope of Work:
1. Provide design of electrical and control system improvements for the following facility
improvements:

a. Power supply transformer
b. Generator with fuel tank
c. Two (2) UFA well pump motors s with space for a future LFA well
d. Three (3) High service pump motors
e. Chlorine feed system
f. Ground storage tank

Task 1 — Project Management

1.1 Project Kick-Off and Progress Meetings

a. EDA shall attend a kick-off meeting for the project to discuss the detailed project
approach, the project schedule, invoices, project summary and the budget.

1.2 Project Quality Control Technical Review

a.  EDA will attend Technical Review Committee (TRC) meetings as required.

Task 2 — Preparation of Contract Documents

2.1 Design work includes electrical design as defined in the scope of work.

6965 PIAZZA GRANDE AVENUVE, SUITE 311 ORLANDO, FL* 32835
PHONE: 407-745-5604 © FAX: 407-745-5603
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d.

Preparation of 30% Design Documents — EDA will prepare design development
phase 30% design) documents and perform the following:

. Provide an internal technical review prior to submittal.
. Submit a 30% opinion of probable construction cost for the project.
. Attend a 30% design review meeting with the Owner.

Preparation of 60% Design Documents — EDA will prepare design development
phase 60% design) documents and perform the following:

. Submit a 60% opinion of probable construction cost for the project.
. Attend a 60% design review meeting with the Owner.

Preparation of 90% Design Documents — EDA will prepare design development
phase 90% design) documents and perform the following:

. Submit a 90% opinion of probable construction cost for the project.
. Attend a 90% design review meeting with the Owner.

Preparation of 100% Design Documents — EDA will prepare the final design
documents and perform the following:

s Respond to City comments and revise design documents.

s Perform 100% design phase coordination, and design completion activities
and prepare final design documents (100%) including drawings,
specifications, and opinion of probable construction cost.

Task 3 — Contractor Questions/Response

3.1 Documents

EDA shall attend meeting with the Contractor to review the 100% design. EDA
will modify plans as appropriate based on VE and strategy meetings with the
Contractor. EDA will provide the following documents.

s An electronic copy of the bid documents in PDF format.

. Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction Cost.

3.2 Addenda

a.

EDA shall assist in preparing up to two (2) design addenda to address/respond to
questions and comments submitted to the Owner by the Contractor.

CPH will provide EDA with AutoCAD 2D .dwg files as necessary throughout design.
Compensation for all services, materials, supplies, and any other items or requirements necessary
to complete the work defined in this Task Assignment will be based upon an estimated fee
amount of $113,500.00. This includes all tasks described above (i.e. Tasks 1 through 3). Our
scope of work shall be as outlined above and as indicated on the attached estimate of work effort.

6965 PIAZZA GRANDE AVENUVE, SUITE 311 ORLANDO, FL* 32835

PHONE: 407-745-5604 © FAX: 407-745-5603
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Services not specifically outlined above are excluded. Our work shall be billed lump sum

payable as follows:

January 1

Task 1 - Meetings, Project Management and Quality Control ~ $ 7,000.00
Task 2.1 - Preparation of Contract Documents $ 102,000.00
Task 3 - Bidding Services $ 4,500.00
Total: $ 113,500.00
Very truly yours,
Michael Cahill, P.E.
ACCEPTED DATE

CPH-25-002D

6965 PIAZZA GRANDE AVENUVE, SUITE 311 ORLANDO, FL* 32835

PHONE: 407-745-5604 © FAX: 407-745-5603
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ATTACHMENT B
CPH Consulting, LLC -
Proposal for Ecological Services
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EXHIBIT D - ENVIRONMENTAL (ECOLOGICAL) SCOPE OF SERVICES

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The Town of Eatonville has requested CPH to conduct a preliminary ecological assessment and wetland
delineation to assist with project planning to prepare project plans for the Water Treatment Plant
Improvements at 400 Ruffel Street identified with Parcel ID # 35-21-29-0000-00-078 (Orange County
Property Appraiser) located in Orange County, Eatonville, Florida.

1.0 ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

ENV-1 Preliminary Ecological Assessment
CPH shall perform a preliminary ecological assessment on the subject property. Tasks to be completed
include the following:
> Public Data Base Research: CPH will review Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission
(FFWCC) and U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) web-based files and distribution mappings
and review the Atlas of Breeding Sites of Herons and Their Allies (FFWCC) to identify recorded
listed species within the project site or within the vicinity of the subject property.
> Field Investigation: CPH will conduct a preliminary survey by general reconnaissance of the site for
the occurrence or potential occurrence of protected species (threatened and endangered) and
wetlands and surface waters. The approximate location of all observed protected species and
approximate extent and configuration of wetlands and surface waters shall be identified on the
FLUCFCS map or aerial photograph prints. Those species referred to as protected are listed under
Florida Administrative Code 68A and Florida Statue 581.185 and Code of Federal Regulation (50
CFR17.11 and 17.12).
> Vegetation and Land Use: CPH will prepare a Vegetation and Land Use Map covering the project
site. The mapping will follow Level Il nomenclature of the Florida Land Use Cover and Forms
Classification System (FLUCFCS). The approximate acreage of each classification will be
tabulated for the site. The map will be digitized based on "desktop" interpretation of features
evident on the aerial photography, correlation with soil types and field verification for each mapped
classification. The dominant vegetation of each classification will be recorded.
> Report: CPH shall prepare a memorandum report summarizing the habitat and land use mapping,
observed protected species, current regulatory considerations, estimated wetland mitigation costs
and results of the public data base search to assist with project planning as applicable to the site
conditions. The Client shall receive an electronic copy of the report and figures.

ENV-2 Wetland Delineation
CPH scientists shall conduct a field investigation to determine if wetland areas are located within the project
boundaries.
> CPH shall delineate wetlands in the field with flagging tape and/or stakes in accordance with
methodologies outlined in Chapter 62-340, F.A.C., and the Corps Wetland Delineation Manual
(1987) and the 2008 Corps Interim Regional Supplement to the Corps Wetland Delineation
Manual: Atlantic & Gulf Coastal Plain Region.
» CPH shall provide a hand drawn sketch on an aerial of the approximate wetland line limits to
communicate the flag location and numbers to the surveyor.
» CPH shall review the survey and provide QAQC comments to surveyor if edits are needed.
» CPH shall document the wetland characteristics on wetland data forms during the wetland
delineation. Forms to be completed will document the wetland delineation and wetland quality.
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2.0 COMPENSATION
Services under Basic Services will be provided on an hourly or a fixed fee basis in accordance with the
table below.

Task # Task Name Fee Type Fee

ENV-1 Preliminary Ecological Assessment Lump Sum $4,250.00

ENV-2 Wetland Delineation Lump Sum $4,525.00
ENVIRONMENTAL SCOPE TOTAL $8,775.00

Additional services shall be other professional and technical services not specifically identified above.
Invoices for Additional Services will be provided on an hourly plus expense reimbursement basis.

3.0 SCOPE OF WORK CLARIFICATIONS

The Environmental scope of work shall be as indicated within this exhibit. Additional scope of work in any
category will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis and may be cause for additional services billed at the
Hourly Billing Rate included as a part of this proposal or as an approved negotiated lump sum.

For all site visits and meetings, travel within 100 miles round-trip from the originating CPH office shall be
included in the fees provided. Travel beyond 100 miles round-trip shall be expensed as a reimbursable
cost.

Any work not specifically indicated in this proposal is excluded including but not limited to the
following:

e Special meetings with agencies, other consultants or Client except those meetings, if any,

specifically identified in the above Scope of Work

Local, State & Federal Wetland Permitting

Professional Surveying

Tree Removal Permitting

Archaeological & Historical Studies or Reports

Gopher Tortoise Permitting and Relocation

Section 7 or Section 10 Consultation and Studies

Specific Wildlife Assessments and Permitting

Survey and Engineering

Services resulting from changes made by client following the completion of specific project tasks that require

re-work by CPH

e Special meetings with agencies, other consultants or Client except those meetings, if any, specifically
identified in the above Scope of Work

e Phase |, Il and remediation
Mitigation Bank Credit Purchase

CPH Consulting, LLC Rev 7/2023
DBA CPH, LLC—FL
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ATTACHMENT C
CPH Consulting, LLC -
Proposal for Survey Services
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January 6, 2025

RE: Eatonville Lake Bell WTP 1

EXHIBIT E - SURVEY SCOPE OF SERVICES

1.0

BASIC SERVICES

SUR-1.0 — Due Diligence

SUR-1.1 — Boundary and Topographic Survey:
Prepare a Boundary and Topographic Survey to include Parcel Identification Number 35-21-29-0000-
00-078 (Orange County Property Appraiser website) of approximately 8.4+ acres on-site and 2.76+
acres off-site, as per Rule Chapter 5J-17 of the Florida Administrative Code in compliance with the
Standards of Practice of Surveying and Mapping of the State of Florida.

Note

Recover/set boundary corners.

Collect topographic data at a 50’ grid of site to include a 5' overlap on adjoining boundary lines
where accessible or up to the adjacent edge of water.

Collect topographic data at 50’ cross sections of the half right-of-way of two (2) adjacent roads.
Location of existing visible above ground improvements & visible utilities within scope.

Location of trees with 6 inches DBH and greater within scope. Size and common name only, a
Certified Tree Survey is not included as part of this scope. In heavily wooded areas, only a tree line
will be depicted on the survey.

The project coordinate system will be based horizontally on the North American Datum 83(1990)
(NAD 83/90).

The project will be based vertically on the North American Vertical Datum of 1988 (NAVD 88).
Depict underground utilities based on a CADD file provided by ECHO.

Signed and Sealed Survey.

: This is not an ALTA/NSPS Land Title Survey. A formal title review is not a part of this contract.

SUR-1.2 — Wetland Line Location:

2.0

Location of wetland flags as set by CPH Environmental Department (depict on survey with ties and
area calculation).

COMPENSATION

Services under Basic Services will be provided on a fixed fee basis in accordance with the table below.

Task # Task Name Fee Type Fee
SUR-1.0 | Due Diligence
SUR-1.1 | Boundary and Topographic Survey Fixed $20,180.00
SUR-1.2 | Wetland Line Location Fixed $ 2,500.00
SURVEY SCOPE TOTAL $22,680.00

J:\2400998-EATONVILLE CBDG-MIT GRANT LAKE BELL WTP\CIVIL\CONTRACTS\ATTACHMENT C - TOPO
SURVEY\EXHIBIT E.DOCX

147




Section IV. Item #4.

3.0 SCOPE OF WORK CLARIFICATIONS

The Survey scope of work shall be as indicated within this exhibit. Additional scope of work in any category
will be reviewed on a case by case basis and may be cause for additional services billed at the Hourly
Billing Rate included as a part of this proposal or as an approved negotiated lump sum.

Any work not specifically indicated in this proposal is excluded including but not limited
to the following:

As-built Survey

ALTA/NSPS Land Title Survey

Certified Tree Survey

Underground Utility Designation/Location

Platting

Sketch and Descriptions

Ordinary High Water/Mean High Water

Separate review of CLIENT and/or financial institution requirements
Soil Borings

Construction Staking

J:\2400998-EATONVILLE CBDG-MIT GRANT LAKE BELL WTP\CIVIL\CONTRACTS\ATTACHMENT C - TOPO
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ATTACHMENT D
ECHO UES -
Proposal for Sub-Surface Survey Services
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UTILITY ENGINEERING & SURVEY
ECHO UES, Inc.

888.778.ECHO
www.echoues.com
Grow, Inspire, Make a Difference

January 10, 2025

Robbie Gonzalez, P.E.
Senior Project Manager

PROPOSAL FOR
SUBSURFACE UTILITY ENGINEERING &
UTILITY SURVEY SERVICES

Project: Lake Bell WTP, Town of Eatonville, FL

Dear Mr. Gonzalez:

At ECHO UES, Inc. (ECHO) we value your consideration and appreciate the opportunity to
provide a proposal for professional services. This proposal, inclusive of a fee estimate, details
the approach we consider the most suitable for your project.

Project Synopsis: Based on the information made available to ECHO, we understand the project
consists of engineering design services for site improvements at the existing Lake Bell WTP site,
for the Town of Eatonville. ECHO’s professional services were requested to provide subsurface
utility engineering and utility survey services within the project limits. Specifically, ECHO was
requested to investigate the location of the raw water lines within the property and
originating from the two (2) existing wells.

Project Limits: Consist of the areas surrounding the two wells; once the raw water well line(s)
are identified, ECHO will trace them to the next visible feature within the parcel limits.

Subsurface Utility Engineering (SUE) Services

Using a combination of field investigative techniques and technology, including surface
geophysical instruments (e.g. GPR, pipe/cable locators) and vacuum excavation if needed,
ECHO will perform the following services.

1. Identification and marking of existing utilities. Utilities potentially in conflict with
the project and located within the project limits will be investigated in an attempt to
identify their position. The results will be marked on the ground surface using the
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most appropriate method (i.e. pin flags, paint etc.) and showing the approximate
position of the identified utilities.

ECHO will attempt to identify and mark exclusively the raw water well lines; no
other utilities will be investigated.

2. Verification of utility location and characteristics. At specific locations, ECHO will
attempt to expose utilities via minimally intrusive methods (e.g. use of vacuum
excavation) to confirm their characteristics (e.g. type, size, material, direction,
configuration) and provide an accurate location. At completion of each excavation
(test hole) ECHO will record all verifiable utility information, mark the utility location
with the most appropriate method (e.g. wooden lathes, “X” mark on concrete, disc
and nail on asphalt) and restore the field to as close as possible to its original
conditions.

Only if/when requested by the EOR.

Utility Survey

Set/recover horizontal and vertical control throughout the project corridor to collect the
subsurface utility engineering information.

Collect utility information as identified per the steps above.

All survey efforts will be conducted in accordance with the Standards of Practice set
forth in Rule Chapter 5J-17, F.A.C., pursuant to Section 472.027, F.S.

Deliverables:

e Survey digital CADD file, inclusive of sheeting on appropriate format and scale, and a
signed and sealed surveyor’s report.

Proposed Schedule: To be discussed and agreed upon with the client following acceptance of
this proposal. The proposed schedules shall be valid barring any unforeseen conditions.

Notes and Limitations:

1.
2.
3.

Client shall facilitate access to the site and provide any relevant project information.

Site must be clear from obstacles impeding access to any portion of the project limits.

Standard work hours are from 7:00am to 4:00pm, Monday through Friday; additional charges may occur (following
discussion with the Client) in case of weekend or nighttime work.

ECHO will not work on any site that is known to be contaminated with any hazardous or harmful substance.

Any permit or fee requested to perform the work complying with any stakeholder’s requirement will be submitted to
the Client with a 5% administrative markup.

FDOT Design Standards (Index 600 Series) will be utilized for the Maintenance of Traffic (MOT). Should the site
require modification to the Index 600 for non-standard MOT arrangements, ECHO will seek the Client’s concurrence
to obtain signed and sealed project’s specific MOT plans (to be provided by others).

Any cost associated with signed and sealed MOT plans will be submitted to the Client with a 5% administrative
markup.

Unless otherwise stated within this proposal, test holes have usual depth of up to eight (8) ft. from the ground
surface, and diameter of up to 1 ft. Should there be a need for deeper or wider excavations, additional charges may

apply.
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The original ground surface at each test hole location will be restored to as close as possible to its original conditions,
using concrete mix or asphalt cold patch as applicable. Any deviation from this standard (e.g. use of hot asphalt,
flowable fill etc.) may require additional charges and the use of specialty subcontractors.

Regardless of the type of estimate proposed (e.g. lump sum, time and materials, etc.) such estimate should be
considered indicative and based on preliminary information. Should any situation out of ECHO’s control heavily
impact ECHO’s field work performance (e.g. adverse site conditions), ECHO reserves the right to seek additional funds
to complete the work.

The exact location of any underground utility is not guaranteed unless clearly exposed and visually verified at a
specific location. Utility characteristics, methods of installation, soil conditions and the surrounding environment all
may impact adversely the results of any utility investigation with surface geophysical instruments and technology. No
guarantee is made that all utilities will be found and identified.

Independently from ECHO’s scope of work and performance, the Client shall comply with the relative chapter from
the Florida (or any other applicable) Statutes: “Underground Facility Damage Prevention and Safety Act” and call 811
prior to any excavation taking place.

Subsurface Utility Engineering, Designating and Locating terms all refer to the American Society of Civil Engineers /
Utility Engineering and Surveying Institute / Construction Institute “Standard Guideline for Investigating and
Documenting Existing Utilities” (ASCE/UESI/CI 38-22). Should ECHO adopt this standard for the performance of the
scope of work and preparation of deliverables, clear mention to the Standard shall be made throughout the
deliverable.

Fee: ECHO’s competitive offer, which is inclusive of all field, office, materials, supplies, and
equipment costs is detailed below.

Subsurface Utility Engineering and Utility Survey as described herewith; Fixed Fee:
$6,310.00

Utility verification test holes, if/when requested: $600.00/ea., inclusive of survey and
update of the survey files, with a minimum of five (5) requested per mobilization.

Acceptance: We will honor this proposal for 90 days. If accepted, please return to our
attention together with a professional services agreement/task work order authorization and
official Notice to Proceed.

At ECHO UES, Inc. we believe in collaboration and communication with our clients and are
driven to understand their needs and provide time-efficient and cost-effective solutions. ECHO
strives to provide quality utility and survey reliable data to design better, build faster, and safely
enhance Engineering, Design, Construction and Maintenance of infrastructure.

Thank you for considering ECHO for this important project and please do not hesitate to
contact me directly should you have any questions or concerns.

Sincerely,

Carlo Pilia
Vice President
ECHO UES, Inc.
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Vicinity Map:

Project Limits: based on the actual location of the raw water lines.
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ATTACHMENT E
NADIC , Inc. -

Proposal for Geotechnical Services
at Proposed Lake Bell WTP Site
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ENGINEERING

January 3, 2025

CPH Consulting, LL.C
500 West Fulton Street
Sanford, Florida 32771

Attention: Mr. Robbie Gonzalez, P.E.

RE:  Geotechnical Engineering Fee Proposal for
Eatonville Lake Bell Water Treatment Plant
Town of Eatonville, Florida
NADIC Project No. PQ.GEO-CV24091

Dear Mr. Gonzelez:

As per your email dated December 27, 2024, Nadic Engineering Services, Inc. (NADIC) is pleased to provide
this Fee Proposal for design and construction of a new Water Treatment Plant (WTP) located at the Denton
Johnson Community Center at 400 Ruffel Street in Eatonville, Florida. This proposal presents our understanding
of the project, our recommended scope of services, cost and schedule for providing these services. We understand
that the new WTP will consist of the following:

e A Ground Storage Tank
Approximately 200 feet paved access roadway
A Stormwater Pond
A one-story Operations Building
A Generator Pad

The purpose of this investigation will be to explore the soil and groundwater conditions at the site and to use
the information obtained to provide geotechnical engineering recommendation for engineering design and
construction effort for the proposed new WTP. Our recommended scope of services includes the following:

1) Coordinate boring location, including field reconnaissance, mark boring location at the sites.

2) Coordinate clearance and meetings with utility locators.

3) Mobilize truck mounted drill rig and personnel.

4) Perform a geotechnical investigation consisting of the following:

e Three (3) 75-foot deep SPT borings within the footprint of the proposed Ground Storage Tank.
o Two (2) undisturbed samples will be collected for the purposes of consolidation testing (if
applicable).
e Two (2) 6-foot deep Auger borings along the access roadway.
e One (1) 15 foot-deep SPT boring within the Stormwater Pond.
o One (1) field permeability test will be performed at least 1-foot above the encountered
groundwater table.
e Two (2) 25-foot SPT borings within the footprint of the proposed Operations Building.
e One (1) 15-foot SPT boring at the location of the Generator Pad.

5) Collect groundwater level measurement and estimate normal wet seasonal high groundwater table.

6) Backfill the 6-feet to 25-feet deep soil borings with like insitu materials removed. The 75-feet deep borings
will be grouted.

7) Visually examine all recovered soil samples in accordance to ASTM D2487 and perform laboratory tests
on selected representative soil samples. The laboratory testing shall include Sieve analysis, Atterberg
limits, organic content, natural moisture content, unit weight test, specific gravity test, corrosion series
testing, and consolidation testing, as appropriate.

WWW.NADICINC.COM
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Eatonville Lake Bell Water Treatment Plant Jantary>;zozo
NADIC Proposal No.: PQ.GEO-CV24091 Page 2 of 3

8) Incorporate the results of the field and laboratory testing in a formal report with engineering evaluation
and recommendations for foundation design, site preparation, pipe excavation, fill placement and
compaction, including:

e Site preparation including excavation techniques, expectations, depth of removal and over-
excavation, safe slopes for any permanent cuts or fills, and improvements of in-situ soils, if
applicable.

e Support of excavations including protection of existing adjacent utilities/structures during
construction, lateral pressures for design of excavation support systems and any displacement
monitoring recommendations.

e Constructability considerations including temporary excavation slopes, sheeting and
shoring/cofferdams, traffic control/maintenance, excavatability, possibility of heave of
excavation bottoms, and applicable dewatering issues and methods.

e Influence of expansive soils, if encountered, on foundation design and recommendations to
mitigate harmful effects.

e Backfill materials including onsite availability, recommended index properties, aggregate
gradations, classifications in accordance with ASTM D2487 and moisture and density
compaction criteria.

e Compaction characteristics and suitability of onsite soils for use as engineered and other fills
and other pertinent earthwork recommendations, including shrinkage factors.

e Any other geological or geotechnical recommendations considered by the geotechnical
engineer to be pertinent to the project.

In accordance with the proposed scope of services and unit prices, we estimate the total (Not-To-Exceed) cost
for our geotechnical services to be $35,561.79. Our schedule to complete the described work will be five (5)
working weeks from your written notice to proceed.

The fee presented above does not include environmental investigation and evaluation. However, if visible
contamination is noticed, it shall be reported to CPH. In case, potential contamination is observed, NADIC
will present a proposal for the additional cost.

NADIC appreciates the opportunity of working with you, CPH and the Town of Eatonville on this project. If
you have any questions regarding this proposal, or if we may be of further assistance, please do not hesitate to
contact the undersigned.

Sincerely,
NADIC ENGINEERING SERVICES, INC.

Godwin N. Nnadi, Ph.D., P.E.
Principal Engineer

Attachment: Attachment A — Computation of Geotechnical Cost

NADIQG
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PQ.GEO.CV24091 ATTACHMENT A - COMPUTATION OF GEOTECHNICAL COST Dasad
EATONVILLE LAKE BELL WATER TREATMENT PLANT Section IV. ltem #4.

EATONVILLE, FLORIDA

TOTAL
Component/Unit Description UNIT | QTY RATE COST
I. FIELD EXPLORATION:
1. Crew & Equipment Mobilization:
612-Mobilization Drill Rig Truck Mount Ea. 1 $563.55 $563.55
610-Mobilization Drill Rig Track Mount Ea. 0 $3,000.00 $0.00
712-Support Vehicle Hr 22 $120.00 $2,640.00
2. Standard Penetration Test Borings(ASTM D-1586):
478-Geo SPT Truck 0-50 Ft LF 230 $20.96 $4,820.80
479-Geo SPT Truck 50-100 Ft LF 75 $26.39 $1,979.25
3. Auger Borings (ASTM D-1452):
401-Hand/Truck LF 12 $17.09 $205.08
479-Track LF $18.00 $0.00
4. Grout Boreholes: Truck/Mud Bug:
440-Geo Grout Boreholes- Truck 0-50 Ft LF 150 $7.76 $1,164.00
441-Geo Grout Boreholes- Truck 50-100 Ft LF 75 $9.33 $699.75
5. Temp Casing 4": Truck/Mud Bug:
488-Geo Temp Casing 4"- Truck 0-50 Ft LF 150 $13.00 $1,950.00
489-Geo Temp Casing 4"- Truck 50-100 Ft LF 75 $16.00 $1,200.00
9. Truck and Crew:
531-Geo Drilling Crew 2-Person Hr 2 $329.13 $658.26
15. Undist Samples(ASTM D-1587): Truc/MB
519-Geo Undisturbed Samples Truck 0-50 Ft Ea. 2 $281.00 $562.00
10. Site Reconnaissance/Utility Coordination:
a. - Engineer Intern Hr $83.60 $0.00
b. -Sr. Engineering Tech Hr 6 $85.95 $515.70
11. GPS Rental: Days 0.5 $100.00 $50.00
12. Field Permeability (0 -10 ft) - Truck Ea. 1 $430.00 $430.00
Totals for Field Exploration $17,438.39
II. LABORATORY TESTING:
1. Visual Exam./Stratify(ASTM D-2488):
- Engineer Intern hrs. 3 $83.60 $250.80

Nadic Engineering Services, Inc.
601 N. Hart Blvd.

Orlando, FL. 32818

Phone: 407 521 4771 =

Fax: 407 521 4772
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EATONVILLE LAKE BELL WATER TREATMENT PLANT
EATONVILLE, FLORIDA
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TOTAL
Component/Unit Description UNIT | Q1Y RATE COST
2. Grain Size Analysis:
822- Soils Particle Anlys AASHTO T99 No Hydrome  Ea. 2 $113.33 $226.66
812 -Soils Material Finer then 200 sieve FM 1-T011 Ea. 12 $75.28 $903.36
819-Soil Organic Content Ignition FM 1-T 267: Ea. 4 $57.67 $230.68
826-Soil Plastic Limit & Plasticity Index AASHTO T¢  Ea. 4 $57.67 $230.68
811-Soil Liquid Limit AASHTO T89: Ea. 4 $57.67 $230.68
817-Soil Moisture Content AASHTO-T265): Ea. 14 $24.00 $336.00
806-Unit Weight Determination: Test 2 $75.28 $150.56
831-Soils Specific Gravity AASHTO T100 Test 2 $113.33 $226.66
803-Soils Consolidation - Constant Strain ASTM D41 Test 2 $939.25 $1,878.50
801-Soils Consol-Addtl Incrmnts AASHTO T216 (13
to 24 Loads) Ea 10 $100.00 $1,000.00
805-Soils Corrosion Series FM 5-550 to 5-553: Ea. 1 $248.50 $248.50
(pH, Sulfate, Chloride, Resistivity)

Totals for Laboratory Testing $5,913.08
ENGINEERING AND TECHNICAL SERVICES:
1. Chief Engineer: hrs. 12 $248.94 $2,987.33
2. Senior Geotech Engineer: hrs. $210.39 $0.00
3. Geotech Engineer: hrs. 30 $179.30 $5,378.94
4. Engineer Intern hrs 22 $83.60 $1,839.22
5. Cadd/Computer Technician: hrs. 8 $100.19 $801.52
6. Senior Geotech Technician: hrs. 14 $85.95 $1,203.30
7. Secretarial/Clerical: hrs. $63.13 $0.00

Totals for Engineering and Technical Services $12,210.32

Total - Lump Sum $35,561.79

Nadic Engineering Services, Inc.

601 N. Hart Blvd.

Orlando, FL. 32818

Phone: 407 521 4771 )

Fax: 407 521 4772
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Lake Bell Park, Eatonville
1/29/25

EXHIBIT G - LANDSCAPE ARCHITECURE SCOPE OF SERVICES

1.0

BASIC SERVICES

LAND-0100 — Due Diligence
LAND-0101 — Kickoff & Site Visit
CPH proposes to perform the following limited due diligence scope:

CPH will participate in one (1) kick off meeting or conference call with the CLIENT to review the
overall development and project goals.
CPH will conduct one (1) site visit.

LAND-0200 — Conceptual Design
Conceptual Landscape Plan (10% Basis for Design)

Based upon the data gathered during the Limited Site Check Study and Meeting with Town of
Eatonville and utilizing the site survey/concept plan provided by CLIENT, CPH shall prepare up to
3 (three) Conceptual Plans. Conceptual Landscape/Hardscape Plan shall be general in nature,
identifying shade tree, shrub and groundcover locations and hardscape elements. Once client
has chosen a concept CPH will finalize the concept plan incorporating one round of comments
from client.

Public Meetings/Hearings. CPH Landscape Architecture team will be available to conduct up to
one community meeting and to attend and present the concept plans at one public hearing.

LAND-0300 — Preliminary Design

LAND-0301 — Schematic Design (30%)

CPH landscape architects will prepare a tree protection and mitigation plan in accordance with
Local Codes and Ordinances based on a tree survey and supporting tree inventory data provided
by surveyor.

The plan will show trees to remain or be relocated, and trees to be removed.

CPH will develop Schematic Design plan based upon the selected concept to include preliminary
layout of main program elements, hardscape features, furnishings and preliminary planting plan.

LAND-0302 — Design Development (60%)

Pursuant to the completion of the Tree Protection and Mitigation Plan and approval of the
schematic plan, CPH will prepare a code minimum landscape plan for buffers, parking lot and
required open space, which will include limited foundation plantings surrounding the buildings.
The landscape plan will be designed in compliance with CLIENT’s design criteria and Local
Jurisdiction minimum Landscape Code requirements.

The plan will be drawn to scale over the base provided by the Project Engineer and will indicate
design intent, but not be at the construction document level.

Plant species and specifications will be identified but not plant quantities.

CPH will prepare preliminary hardscape drawings for the project site based upon approved site
plan by the CLIENT.

The plan will include the proposed placement and selection of site furnishings such as benches,
drinking fountains, trash receptacles, bike racks, pergolas, pavilions, arbors, trellises. The
preliminary hardscape plans also include the location and general schematic design of other
specialty design elements such as seat walls, low retaining walls (3 feet in height or less)
decorative pavers/paving and decorative water features/fountains.

The preliminary hardscape drawings will include preparation of preliminary construction details or
product cut sheets for product option selection by the client.
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LAND-0500 — Construction Documents (90-100%)
LAND-0501 - Final Landscape Plan
e Following CLIENT’s approval of the Preliminary Landscape Plan, and authorization to proceed,
CPH will prepare a Final Landscape Plan that will be a refined drawing of the preliminary
landscape plan that is responsive to review comments from the CLIENT.
e This drawing will be a construction document and include a plant list with plant species, quantity
and specifications, planting details and general notes regarding implementation requirements.

LAND-0502 — Irrigation Plan
e Following CLIENT’s approval of the Final Landscape Plan, CPH will prepare an irrigation plan for
an automatic irrigation system that responds to the requirements of the landscape design,
CLIENT’s design criteria and Local Jurisdiction’s minimum requirements.
e This drawing will be a construction document and include a materials list, watering schedule,
irrigation details and general notes regarding implementation requirements.

LAND-0503 - Final Hardscape Plan

e CPH will prepare final hardscape drawings for the project site upon CLIENT’s approval of the
preliminary hardscape drawings and authorization to proceed.

e This will include the selection and detailing of site furnishings such as benches, drinking
fountains, trash receptacles, bike racks, pergolas, pavilions, arbors, trellises. The final hardscape
plans also include the design and detailing of other specialty elements such as seat walls, low
retaining walls (3 feet in height or less) decorative pavers/paving and decorative water
features/fountains.

e The construction hardscape drawings will include preparation of implementation notes and
specifications on the drawings.

e Footers or foundations for vertical elements are to be prepared by CLIENT’s structural engineer
unless said scope is included in this Agreement.

LAND-0600 — Permitting

Landscape Plan Permitting
The following applications and approval process are assumed to be required and included in the scope
of this contract. CPH will prepare submittal applications and support data for the following
actions/permits:

e Town of Eatonville Building/Site Permit

Unless specifically noted in this contract, no Master Land Use Plan, Conceptual Development Plan,
Land Use Change, Rezoning, conditional use, special exception, dedication, development agreement,
special approval or other variances/deviations are included in this task. If a Master Land Use Plan,
Conceptual Development Plan, special exception, Land Use Change, Rezoning, conditional use,
dedication, development agreement, special approval or other variances/deviations are necessary, an
amendment to the contract and additional fee will be required.

Scope assumes one (1) submittal of applications and supporting documents, and one (1) response to
agency comments. CPH will coordinate the processing of the applications through the listed regulatory
agencies including attendance at a limited number of meetings. This scope includes:

e One (1) meeting or conference call with Town of Eatonville staff for review of comments
If additional permits, meetings or hearings are required or other agencies are identified as having
jurisdiction beyond those listed above, they will be deemed as an additional service and an

amendment to the contract will be required.

Any modifications to the plans requested by the Regulatory Agencies required to comply with code
that have not been discussed previously with CLIENT, will be addressed by CPH as part of these

CPH Consulting, LLC- FL Rev 10/2023
DBA CPH, LLC g2
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services. Any modifications requested that are not code issues or are code issues that CLIENT was

aware of will be addressed as an additional service.

Fee does not include reviewing, preparing, negotiating or submitting other documents or exhibits
including, but not limited to, impact fees, opinions of probable cost, lease, purchase agreement, private
development agreement, dedications, and Easements, Covenants, and Restrictions. These services

will be provided for an additional fee if requested.

LAND-0700 — Construction Services
Construction Observation

CPH Landscape Architects will provide Limited construction support services to the CLIENT
throughout the duration of the project construction period. For the purposes of this scope of work, the
construction duration shall be 5 months (20 weeks). The construction support scope of work shall

include the

following:

e CPH shall review and respond to up to 5 (five) Requests for Information (RFI's) from the general
contractor. Responses shall be provided within a timely manner as defined on a project basis.
RFI’s that are due to insufficient or unclear information in the construction documents will not
count towards the number of RFI’s.

e CPH shall review up to 5 (five) product submittals and/or shop drawings for conformance with the
design intent of the Construction Documents. Responses shall be provided within a timely
manner as defined on a project basis.

e CPH shall conduct a final observation / punch out of the project at near completion and provide a
punch list of work to be corrected or completed for compliance with the construction documents.

2.0 COMPENSATION

Services under Basic Services will be provided on an hourly or a fixed fee basis in accordance with the

table below:

Task # Task Name Fee Type Fee
LAND-0100 | Due Diligence Lump Sum $4,060.00
LAND-0101 | Kickoff & Site Visit Lump Sum $4,060.00
LAND-0200| Conceptual Design (Basis for Lump Sum $12,220.00

Design -10%)
LAND-0300 | Preliminary Design Lump Sum $13,920.00
LAND-0301 | Schematic Design (30%) Lump Sum $6,200.00
LAND-0302 | Design Development (60%) Lump Sum $7,720.00
LAND-0500| Construction Documents Lump Sum $19,970.00
LAND-0501 | Final Landscape Plan Lump Sum $6720.00
LAND-0502 | Irrigation Plan Lump Sum $3,250
LAND-0503 | Final Hardscape Plan Lump Sum $10,000.00
LAND-0600 | Permitting Lump Sum $7,740.00

Landscape Plan Permitting Lump Sum $7,740.00
LAND-0700| Construction Services Lump Sum $6,420.00

Construction Observation Lump Sum $6,420.00

CPH Consulting, LLC- FL

DBA CPH, LLC

Rev 10/2023
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| LANDSCAPE SCOPE TOTAL| $64,330.00

3.0 SCOPE OF WORK CLARIFICATIONS

The Landscape scope of work shall be as indicated within this exhibit. Additional scope of work in any
category will be reviewed on a case by case basis and may be cause for additional services billed at the
Hourly Billing Rate included as a part of this proposal or as an approved negotiated lump sum.

For all site visits and meetings, travel within 100 miles round-trip from the originating CPH office shall be
included in the fees provided. Travel beyond 100 miles round-trip shall be expensed as a reimbursable
cost.

Any work not specifically indicated in this proposal is excluded including but not limited
to the following:

More than 1 RAI per government agency
CLIENT requested or any other changes to the site plan originally provided to the Landscape
Architect for fee proposal.

e Color Perspectives or Plan Renderings (can be included as add service)

e Tree Survey/evaluation (by others)

e Any major deviation from the approved preliminary landscape plan will be completed as an
additional service.

e As-Built Drawings

e Book specifications — notes to be included on plans.

CPH Consulting, LLC- FL Rev 10/2023

DBA CPH, LLC e
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Lake Bell Park, Eatonville
1/29/25

EXHIBIT G - LANDSCAPE ARCHITECURE SCOPE OF SERVICES

1.0

BASIC SERVICES

LAND-0100 — Due Diligence
LAND-0101 — Kickoff & Site Visit
CPH proposes to perform the following limited due diligence scope:

CPH will participate in one (1) kick off meeting or conference call with the CLIENT to review the
overall development and project goals.
CPH will conduct one (1) site visit.

LAND-0200 — Conceptual Design
Conceptual Landscape Plan (10% Basis for Design)

Based upon the data gathered during the Limited Site Check Study and Meeting with Town of
Eatonville and utilizing the site survey/concept plan provided by CLIENT, CPH shall prepare up to
3 (three) Conceptual Plans. Conceptual Landscape/Hardscape Plan shall be general in nature,
identifying shade tree, shrub and groundcover locations and hardscape elements. Once client
has chosen a concept CPH will finalize the concept plan incorporating one round of comments
from client.

Public Meetings/Hearings. CPH Landscape Architecture team will be available to conduct up to
one community meeting and to attend and present the concept plans at one public hearing.

LAND-0300 — Preliminary Design

LAND-0301 — Schematic Design (30%)

CPH landscape architects will prepare a tree protection and mitigation plan in accordance with
Local Codes and Ordinances based on a tree survey and supporting tree inventory data provided
by surveyor.

The plan will show trees to remain or be relocated, and trees to be removed.

CPH will develop Schematic Design plan based upon the selected concept to include preliminary
layout of main program elements, hardscape features, furnishings and preliminary planting plan.

LAND-0302 — Design Development (60%)

Pursuant to the completion of the Tree Protection and Mitigation Plan and approval of the
schematic plan, CPH will prepare a code minimum landscape plan for buffers, parking lot and
required open space, which will include limited foundation plantings surrounding the buildings.
The landscape plan will be designed in compliance with CLIENT’s design criteria and Local
Jurisdiction minimum Landscape Code requirements.

The plan will be drawn to scale over the base provided by the Project Engineer and will indicate
design intent, but not be at the construction document level.

Plant species and specifications will be identified but not plant quantities.

CPH will prepare preliminary hardscape drawings for the project site based upon approved site
plan by the CLIENT.

The plan will include the proposed placement and selection of site furnishings such as benches,
drinking fountains, trash receptacles, bike racks, pergolas, pavilions, arbors, trellises. The
preliminary hardscape plans also include the location and general schematic design of other
specialty design elements such as seat walls, low retaining walls (3 feet in height or less)
decorative pavers/paving and decorative water features/fountains.

The preliminary hardscape drawings will include preparation of preliminary construction details or
product cut sheets for product option selection by the client.
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LAND-0500 — Construction Documents (90-100%)
LAND-0501 - Final Landscape Plan
e Following CLIENT’s approval of the Preliminary Landscape Plan, and authorization to proceed,
CPH will prepare a Final Landscape Plan that will be a refined drawing of the preliminary
landscape plan that is responsive to review comments from the CLIENT.
e This drawing will be a construction document and include a plant list with plant species, quantity
and specifications, planting details and general notes regarding implementation requirements.

LAND-0502 — Irrigation Plan
e Following CLIENT’s approval of the Final Landscape Plan, CPH will prepare an irrigation plan for
an automatic irrigation system that responds to the requirements of the landscape design,
CLIENT’s design criteria and Local Jurisdiction’s minimum requirements.
e This drawing will be a construction document and include a materials list, watering schedule,
irrigation details and general notes regarding implementation requirements.

LAND-0503 - Final Hardscape Plan

e CPH will prepare final hardscape drawings for the project site upon CLIENT’s approval of the
preliminary hardscape drawings and authorization to proceed.

e This will include the selection and detailing of site furnishings such as benches, drinking
fountains, trash receptacles, bike racks, pergolas, pavilions, arbors, trellises. The final hardscape
plans also include the design and detailing of other specialty elements such as seat walls, low
retaining walls (3 feet in height or less) decorative pavers/paving and decorative water
features/fountains.

e The construction hardscape drawings will include preparation of implementation notes and
specifications on the drawings.

e Footers or foundations for vertical elements are to be prepared by CLIENT’s structural engineer
unless said scope is included in this Agreement.

LAND-0600 — Permitting

Landscape Plan Permitting
The following applications and approval process are assumed to be required and included in the scope
of this contract. CPH will prepare submittal applications and support data for the following
actions/permits:

e Town of Eatonville Building/Site Permit

Unless specifically noted in this contract, no Master Land Use Plan, Conceptual Development Plan,
Land Use Change, Rezoning, conditional use, special exception, dedication, development agreement,
special approval or other variances/deviations are included in this task. If a Master Land Use Plan,
Conceptual Development Plan, special exception, Land Use Change, Rezoning, conditional use,
dedication, development agreement, special approval or other variances/deviations are necessary, an
amendment to the contract and additional fee will be required.

Scope assumes one (1) submittal of applications and supporting documents, and one (1) response to
agency comments. CPH will coordinate the processing of the applications through the listed regulatory
agencies including attendance at a limited number of meetings. This scope includes:

e One (1) meeting or conference call with Town of Eatonville staff for review of comments
If additional permits, meetings or hearings are required or other agencies are identified as having
jurisdiction beyond those listed above, they will be deemed as an additional service and an

amendment to the contract will be required.

Any modifications to the plans requested by the Regulatory Agencies required to comply with code
that have not been discussed previously with CLIENT, will be addressed by CPH as part of these

CPH Consulting, LLC- FL Rev 10/2023
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services. Any modifications requested that are not code issues or are code issues that CLIENT was

aware of will be addressed as an additional service.

Fee does not include reviewing, preparing, negotiating or submitting other documents or exhibits
including, but not limited to, impact fees, opinions of probable cost, lease, purchase agreement, private
development agreement, dedications, and Easements, Covenants, and Restrictions. These services

will be provided for an additional fee if requested.

LAND-0700 — Construction Services
Construction Observation

CPH Landscape Architects will provide Limited construction support services to the CLIENT
throughout the duration of the project construction period. For the purposes of this scope of work, the
construction duration shall be 5 months (20 weeks). The construction support scope of work shall

include the

following:

e CPH shall review and respond to up to 5 (five) Requests for Information (RFI's) from the general
contractor. Responses shall be provided within a timely manner as defined on a project basis.
RFI’s that are due to insufficient or unclear information in the construction documents will not
count towards the number of RFI’s.

e CPH shall review up to 5 (five) product submittals and/or shop drawings for conformance with the
design intent of the Construction Documents. Responses shall be provided within a timely
manner as defined on a project basis.

e CPH shall conduct a final observation / punch out of the project at near completion and provide a
punch list of work to be corrected or completed for compliance with the construction documents.

2.0 COMPENSATION

Services under Basic Services will be provided on an hourly or a fixed fee basis in accordance with the

table below:

Task # Task Name Fee Type Fee
LAND-0100 | Due Diligence Lump Sum $4,060.00
LAND-0101 | Kickoff & Site Visit Lump Sum $4,060.00
LAND-0200| Conceptual Design (Basis for Lump Sum $12,220.00

Design -10%)
LAND-0300 | Preliminary Design Lump Sum $13,920.00
LAND-0301 | Schematic Design (30%) Lump Sum $6,200.00
LAND-0302 | Design Development (60%) Lump Sum $7,720.00
LAND-0500| Construction Documents Lump Sum $19,970.00
LAND-0501 | Final Landscape Plan Lump Sum $6720.00
LAND-0502 | Irrigation Plan Lump Sum $3,250
LAND-0503 | Final Hardscape Plan Lump Sum $10,000.00
LAND-0600 | Permitting Lump Sum $7,740.00

Landscape Plan Permitting Lump Sum $7,740.00
LAND-0700| Construction Services Lump Sum $6,420.00

Construction Observation Lump Sum $6,420.00

CPH Consulting, LLC- FL

DBA CPH, LLC

Rev 10/2023
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| LANDSCAPE SCOPE TOTAL| $64,330.00

3.0 SCOPE OF WORK CLARIFICATIONS

The Landscape scope of work shall be as indicated within this exhibit. Additional scope of work in any
category will be reviewed on a case by case basis and may be cause for additional services billed at the
Hourly Billing Rate included as a part of this proposal or as an approved negotiated lump sum.

For all site visits and meetings, travel within 100 miles round-trip from the originating CPH office shall be
included in the fees provided. Travel beyond 100 miles round-trip shall be expensed as a reimbursable
cost.

Any work not specifically indicated in this proposal is excluded including but not limited
to the following:

More than 1 RAI per government agency
CLIENT requested or any other changes to the site plan originally provided to the Landscape
Architect for fee proposal.

e Color Perspectives or Plan Renderings (can be included as add service)

e Tree Survey/evaluation (by others)

e Any major deviation from the approved preliminary landscape plan will be completed as an
additional service.

e As-Built Drawings

e Book specifications — notes to be included on plans.

CPH Consulting, LLC- FL Rev 10/2023
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EXHIBIT B

Task and Fee Estimate
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Town of Eatonville
Proposed Lake Bell WTP Engineering Services (CBDG-MIT Grant)

CPH Job No. 201.2400998

Exhibit B
A | B C Z AA AF AG
P
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1
2 Hourly Rate ($) per November 1, 2024 68% 32% 100%
3
4|1 Project Setup, Kick-Off Meeting, & Due Diligence Support Services
1.01 Set-up project and prepare a Project Work Plan with tentative schedule. 27 7,334 (% 400 (| $ 7,734
5
102 Prepgre for and Conduct a chl.<-0ff Meeting with the TOWN to identify roles, set a tentative schedule, review TOWN M 10374 | $ 600 || § 10,974
6 requirements, and request available data.
1.03 Subcontract Electrical Design Associates (EDA), an M/WBE firm, to provide Electrical and Instrumentation plans as well as 9 2290 $ 7700 $ 9990
7 ’ the associated technical specifications (Refer to Attachment A for definition of actual services to be performed) ’ ’ ’
104 Coordmate_and conduct Preliminary Ecological Assessment and Wetland Delineation (Refer to Attachment B for definition of 1 2700 $ 9675 s 12,375
8 actual services to be performed).
1.05 Coordinate and conduct Topographic and Boundary Survey (Refer to Attachment C for definition of actual services to be 1 2700 s 24.980 | $ 27.680
9 performed).
106 Subcontract ECHO Utility Engineering & Survey, Inc., an M/WBE firm, to provide Subsurface Utility Location on the proposed 1 2700 $ 10310 | $ 13.010
10 ’ Lake Bell WTP site (Refer to Attachment D for definition of actual services to be performed). ’ ’ ’
Subcontract NADIC Engineering Services, Inc., an M/WBE firm, to perform geotechnical exploration at the proposed Lake
1 1.07 Bell WTP location (Refer to Attachment E for definition of actual services to be performed). 9 2,290 1% 39,362 $ 41,652
108 Coordinate and conduct Landscaping and Irrigation Design Services (Refer to Attachment F for definition of actual services 15 3712 s 70,830 | $ 74,542
12 to be performed).
1.09 Supgqntract Rhodes & Brlto an M/WBE firm, to perform Conceptual Architectural Services (Refer to Attachment G for 15 3712 s 44.000 || $ 47,712
13 definition of actual services to be performed).
14|Subtotal - Project Setup, Kick-Off Meeting, & Due Diligence Support Services 149 37,812 | $ 207,857 | $ 245,669
15 23%
16(2 Project Definition Workshop (10% Conceptual Design)
201 Pre_pare for and conduct a Project Definition Workshop with TOWN Staff (administration, engineering, operations, and 64 17,004 | $ s 17,004
17 maintenance) and CBDG-MIT Program Manager.
Prepare 10% Project Definition Conceptual Design Technical Memorandum (Operations Building Floor Plan, Site Plan Layout
18 202 and Yard Piping) based on Project Definition Workshop for TOWN and CBDG-MIT Program Manager review and comment 196 43,540 8 2,200] § 45,740
2.03 Prepare Class 4 Conceptual Cost Estimate (40% Contingency). 50 12,134 | $ - $ 12,134
19
204 Prepare for and conduct 10% PI’OJeC'l Definition Conceptual Design Technical Memorandum Meeting with TOWN staff and 32 9112 s 500 [ $ 9612
20 CBDG-MIT Program Manager to review comments.
21|Subtotal -  Project Definition Workshop (10% Conceptual Design) 342 81,790 | $ 2,700 | $ 84,490
22 8%
233 Preliminary Basis of Design Report (30% Preliminary Design)
3.01 Conduct site visit and evaluate existing information to identify proposed location of new structures. 22 5914 | $ 300( $ 6,214
24
3.02 Electrical sub-consultant will be respon3|b_le to coordinate with Duke Energy (Duke) to provide a transformer power supply 10 2740 || 200 | § 2.940
25 feed to the proposed Lake Bell WTP location.
3.03 Prepare DRAFT Ba3|§ of Design Report (BODR) with a summary of key design parameters for TOWN and CBDG-MIT 256 61,494 | $ s 61,494
26 Program Manager review and comment.
3.04 Prepare 30% Proposed Site Plan Layout, Major Elevations, and Operations Building Design Drawings for use in permitting. 148 30,868 || $ 1,600 | $ 32,468
27
3.05 Prepare Class 3 Budget Authorization Construction Cost Estimate (30% Contingency). 52 13,124 | $ - $ 13,124
28
3.06 Prepare for and conduct 30% BODR submittal Review Meeting with TOWN and CBDG-MIT Program Manager. 34 9,782 $ 500 || $ 10,282
29
3.07 Prepare FINAL BODR based upon TOWN and CBDG-MIT Program Manager review comments. 92 21,394 (| $ - $ 21,394
30
s 3.08 Conduct QA/QC review of deliverables. 76 21,180 (| $ - $ 21,180
1
32|Subtotal - Preliminary Basis of Design Report (30% Preliminary Design) 690 166,496 | $ 2,600 | $ 169,096
33 16%
34|4 Project Design Documents (60% Submittal)
Prepare 60% Site Plan Layout, Major Elevations and Operations Building Design Drawings for TOWN and CBDG-MIT
35 4.01 Program Manager review and comment based upon TOWN approved BODR. 324 72,280 $ 41,1001 $ 113,380
% 4.02 Prepare 60% Technical Specifications 146 35,720 | $ 1,800 || $ 37,520
3 4.03 Prepare Class 2 Budget Control Construction Cost Estimate (20% Contingency) 38 9,904 (| $ - $ 9,904
7
% 4.04 Conduct 60% submittal Review Meeting with TOWN and CBDG-MIT Program Manager. 38 10,294 || $ - $ 10,294
29 4.05 Conduct QA/QC review of construction documents. 76 21,180 (| $ - $ 21,180
40|Subtotal - Project Design Documents (60% Submittal) 622 149,378 | $ 42,900 | $ 192,278
41 18%
2|5 Project Design Documents (90% Submittal)
5.01 Prepare 90% Site Plan Layout, Major Elevations, and Operations Building Design Drawings for TOWN and Town’s CBDG 318 70,830 | $ 41,000 | $ 111,830
43 MIT Program Manager review and comment.
“ 5.02 Prepare 90% Technical Specifications and Bid Form 98 23,440 (| $ 1,200 || $ 24,640
5.03 Update Class 2 Budget Control Construction Cost Estimate (20% Contingency) 38 9,904 (| $ - $ 9,904
45
% 5.04 Conduct 90% submittal Review Meeting with TOWN and CBDG-MIT Program Manager. 34 9,734 $ - $ 9,734
a7 5.05 Conduct QA/QC review of construction documents. 76 21,180 (| $ - $ 21,180
48|Subtotal - Project Design Documents (90% Submittal) 564 135,088 | $ 42,200 | $ 177,288
49 17%
50 |6 Project Design Development Stage (100% Submittal)
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Town of Eatonville
Proposed Lake Bell WTP Engineering Services (CBDG-MIT Grant)

CPH Job No. 201.2400998

Exhibit B
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1
6.01 Prepare 100% Site Plan Layout, Major Elevations, and Operations Building Design Drawings for use in bidding per DEO 190 42540 | $ 39,600 | 82,140
51 review comments.
5 6.02 Prepare 100% Technical Specifications and Bid Form per DEO review comments 61 14,954 || $ 800 $ 15,754
s 6.03 Prepare Class1 Bid Construction Cost Estimate (10% Contingency) 39 10,214 | $ - $ 10,214
5.
5 6.04 Conduct 100% submittal Review Meeting with TOWN to coordinate bidding services. 34 9,734 [ $ - $ 9,734
- 6.05 Conduct QA/QC review of construction documents. 76 21,180 (| $ - $ 21,180
s6 |Subtotal -  Project Design Development Stage (100% Submittal) 400 98,622 | $ 40,400 | $ 139,022
57 13%
58 |7 Permitting Assistance
Conduct permit inquiry with Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) to submit permit to Construct Public
7.01 Water System (PWS) components. Respond to up to one (1) request for additional information (RAIl) from review/regulatory 34 8,260 || $ -1$ 8,260
59 agency. Permit fee to be paid by TOWN.
Conduct permit inquiry with St. Johns River Water Management District (SIRWMD) to submit a minor permit modification to
7.02 modify existing wells. Respond to up to one (1) request for additional information (RAI) from review/regulatory agency. 18 4,340 (| $ -1'$ 4,340
60 Permit fee to be paid by TOWN.
703 Conduct permit inquiry with FDEP to submit a Stormwater General Environmental Resource Permit (ERP). Respond to up to 24 5.960 || $ s 5960
61 ’ one (1) request for additional information (RAI) from review/regulatory agency. Permit fee to be paid by TOWN. ’ ’
7.04 Conduct permit inquiry and submit signed and sealed plans for TOWN Planning and Zoning permit review. Permit submittal 14 3320 [ $ s 3320
62 ’ will use 60% drawings. Assumes no Plan review fee for TOWN Planning Department. ’ ’
705 Conduct. permit inquiry with Orange County to identify coordination to install new diesel storage tank and generator. Permit fee 14 3520 s s 3,520
63 to be paid by TOWN.
Conduct Building Permit inquiry with TOWN Building Department. Inquiry conducted will use 60% drawings. Assumes no }
64 7.06 Building Permit review fee for TOWN Building Department. 50 104207 § $ 10,420
65|Subtotal - Permitting Assistance 154 35,820 | $ - $ 35,820
66 3%
67(8 Bidding Assistance
8.01 Prepare Bid Documents for the TOWN. 12 2980 $ -0$ 2,980
68
8.02 Prepare for, coordinate, and attend a pre-bid conference for the project 8 2300 $ 200 (| $ 2,500
69
8.03 Prepare answers to q_ues_hons by bidders and suppliers for up to one (1) addendum. Additional addendums will be under a 8 2120 s 5,000 | 7.120
0 separate work authorization.
n 8.04 Attend the bid opening and Town Commission meeting where the contract is awarded 8 2,300 $ 200( $ 2,500
Tabulate bids, review agreement bonds, insurance certifications, construction schedules and other portions of the contract,
8.05 ) 12 2,150 || $ -8 2,150
72 and conduct refence checks on three (3) apparent lower bidders.
7 8.06 Prepare conformed documents for contractor use during the construction phase of the Project. 36 7,880 $ -1$ 7,880
7 8.07 Prepare for and attend the pre-construction meeting. 16 4,220 (| $ -1'$ 4,220
75|Subtotal - Bidding Assistance 100 23,950 $ 5,400 $ 29,350
76 3%
7719 |Construction Administration
s6[Subtotal -  Construction Administration - - $ - S -
87 0%
94 0%
3 TOTA 019 8.956 44.( 0 0
96 CPH Laborfees $§ 728,956 -
97 100%

Eatonville CBDG-MIT Grant Lake Bell WTP 1 Labor Hour Budget (24-Mar-2025).xlIsx
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EXHIBIT C

Revised Indemnification
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caused by the

INDEMNIFICATION
(CERTIFICATION SUBMITTAL FOU

To the fullest extent permitted by laws and regulations, and in £onsideration of the amount stated on
any Purchase Order, the Architect or Engineer shall deferd, indemnify, and hold harmless the Town, its
officers, directors, agents;—guests;—avitees, and employeey from and against all liabilities, damages,
losses, and costs, direct, indirect, or consequential (including but not limited to reasonable fees and
charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other pyofessionals and court and arbitration costs) to
the extent aﬂﬁmg—eu-t—ef—eHeeeH-t-rﬂ-g—f-Fem—aﬁy—aet-s-eﬁ\ egligence, recklessness or intentional wrongful
misconduct in the performance of the work by the Architect or Engineer, any Subcontractor, or any
person or organization directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the
work or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable.

In any and all claims against the Town, or any of its officers, directors, agents, or employees by any
employee of the Architect or Engineer, any Subcontractor, any person or organization directly or
indirectly employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the work or anyone for whose acts any
of them may be liable, this indemnification obligation shall not be limited in any way by any limitation
on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for the Architect or Engineer
or any Subcontractor or other person or organization under workers’ or workmen’s compensation acts,
disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts, nor shall this indemnification obligation be limited
in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of insurance coverage provided by the Town, the
Architect or Engineer, or any of his Subcontractors. To the extent this Indemnification conflicts with any
provision of Florida Law or Statute, this indemnification shall be deemed to be amended in such manner
as to be consistent with such Law or Statute.

Subrogation: The Architect or Engineer and his Subcontractors agree by entering into this contract to a
Waiver of Subrogation for each required policy herein. When required by the insurer or should a policy
condition not permit Architect or Engineer or Subcontractor to enter into a pre-loss agreement to waive
subrogation without an endorsement, then Architect or Engineer or Subcontractor agrees to notify the
insurer and request the policy be endorsed with a Waiver of Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against
Others, or its equivalent. This Waiver of Subrogation requirement shall not apply to any policy, which
includes a condition specifically prohibiting such an endorsement, or voids coverage should Architect or
Engineer or Subcontractor enter into such an agreement on a pre-loss basis.

Release of Liability: Acceptance of the Architect or Engineer of the last payment shall be a release to the
Town and every officer and agent thereof, from all claims and liability hereunder for anything done or
furnished for, or relating to the work, or for any act or neglect of the Town or of any person relating to
or affecting the work.

Savings Clause: The parties agree that to the extent the written terms of this Indemnification conflict
with any provisions of Florida laws or statutes, in particular Sections 725.06 and 725.08 of the Florida
Statutes, the written terms of this indemnification shall be deemed by any court of competent
jurisdiction to be modified in such a manner as to be in full and complete compliance with all such laws
or statutes and to contain such limiting conditions, or limitations of liability, or to not contain any
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unenforceable, or prohibited term or terms, such that this Indemnification shall be
accordance with and to the greatest extent permitted by Florida Law.

BY: ScottA. Breitenstein, P.E. | Division Manager - Treatment Facilities

Signature of Owner or Officer

Section IV. Item #4.

enforceable in

DATE: August 2, 2024 ATTEST:
Corporate Secretary or Witness
407.425.0452
Organization Phone Number
STATE OF: Florida
COUNTY OF: Orange
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 2nd _ day August of
20 24 by Scott A. Breitenstein, P.E. | Division Manager - Treatment Facilities , of
CPH Consulting, LLC (Company Name).
He/She is personally known to me or has produced
as identification, and did /did not take an oath.
Signature of Notary
(Seal)
Printed Name of Notary
My Commission Expires:
1qd 175
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HISTORIC TOWN OF EATONVILLE,
FLORIDA

TOWN COUNCIL WORKSHOP

MAY 6, 2025, 6:30 PM
Cover Sheet

*NOTE** Please do not change the formatting of this document (font style, size, paragraph spacing etc.)

ITEMTITLE: Presentation On A Breast Health Education Event Hosted By The
MASS© Mammogram After Sunday Service Breast Health Education
& Screening Program (Randolph)

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION:

PROCLAMATIONS, YES | Department: LEGISLATION
AWARDS, AND
PRESENTATIONS

INTRODUCTIONS Exhibits:

e Event and Information Flyer

CONSENT AGENDA

COUNCIL DISCUSSION | YES

ADMINISTRATIVE

REQUEST: For Town Council to hear a presentation on a Breast Health Education Event Hosted By The
MASS© Mammogram After Sunday Service Breast Health Education & Screening Program within the
Town of Eatonville.

SUMMARY: The MASS®© breast health education & screening program’s goal is to reduce late-stage
breast cancer diagnoses targeting uninsured women in the state of Florida by providing access to FREE*
mammograms through the Florida Department of Health National Mary Brogan Breast & Cervical Cancer
Early Detection Program (BCCEDP).

EVENT DATE: Saturday, September 6, 2025

EVENT TIME: 9:00 AM - 3:00 PM

EVENT LOCATION: Town of Eatonville, Denton Johnson Community Center 400 Ruffel Street,

Eatonville, FL 32751 A

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended to the Town Council to hear a presentation on a Breast
Health Education Event Hosted By The MASS© Mammogram After Sunday Service Breast Health
Education & Screening Program within the Town of Eatonville.

FISCAL & EFFICIENCY DATA: N/A
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RMASS  EEED

Mammograms After Sunday Service
t Health Edu ing Program

BREAST HEALTH
EDUGATION EVENT

The MASS®© breast health education & screening program’s goal is to
reduce late-stage breast cancer diagnoses targeting uninsured women
in the state of Florida by providing access to FREE* mammograms
through the Florida Department of Health National Mary Brogan
Breast & Cervical Cancer Early Detection Program (BCCEDP).

JOIN US:
DATE: Saturday, September 6, 2025 “e e, '

TIME: 9:00 AM - 3:00 PM el
ADDRESS: City of Eatonville, Denton Johnson Community Center R
400 Ruffel Street, Eatonville, FL 32751

- ; UNINSURED WOMEN
Be a Florida re5|denfc. scan this QR Code to
Do not have health insurance. Pre-Register

Have not had a mammogram within a year.

40-64 years of age OR

o Under age 40 with a 1st degree family history of breast cancer
ninsured - . .
Women (parent, sibling, or child) or symptomatic.

Earn less than or equal to 200% of the poverty level.

e Women of any age who have completed treatment for breast

cancer may be eligible.

Eligibility
Guidelines for

* Have not had their mammograms within a year. scor this QR Code
At average risk for breast cancer should begin receiving to schedule
T mammograms at age 40.
GT.E%L".E',:L‘Q e Most heglth insuragce plans cover screening mammograms ”’”"“?jq
for Insured with no out-of-pocket cost. ﬁnw
Women e Florida women who are insured can schedule their i
mammogram directly with 3D MammoLink . BL_E%""W}‘

FREE Gift Card for eligible uninsured women who complete the virtual breast health education and
keep their scheduled screening appointment. FOR MORE INFORMATION contact:

mass@thebeautifulgateinc.com

(386) 220-5761 thebeautifulgateinc.com

FLORIDA ;./

Deautiful Gate B/ MOMEE UFHealth '5

Cancer Support«/ & Resource Center FOURNDATION HEALTH |;> oject CONTINUITY
CANCER CENTER
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